
West Devon Council

Title: Summons
Date: Tuesday, 30th November, 2021

Time: 4.00 pm

Venue: Chamber - Kilworthy Park

Full Members: Mayor Cllr Mott
Deputy Mayor Cllr Pearce

Members: Cllr Ball
Cllr Bolton
Cllr Bridgewater
Cllr Cheadle
Cllr Coulson
Cllr Crozier
Cllr Davies
Cllr Daniel
Cllr Edmonds
Cllr Ewings
Cllr Heyworth
Cllr Jory
Cllr Kemp
Cllr Kimber

Cllr Leech
Cllr Moody
Cllr Moyse
Cllr Ratcliffe
Cllr Renders
Cllr Ridgers
Cllr Samuel
Cllr Sellis
Cllr Southcott
Cllr Spettigue
Cllr Vachon
Cllr Wood
Cllr Yelland

Interests – 
Declaration and 
Restriction on 
Participation:

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
disclosable pecuniary interest not entered in the Authority's 
register or local non pecuniary interest which they have in any 
item of business on the agenda (subject to the exception for 
sensitive information) and to leave the meeting prior to 
discussion and voting on an item in which they have a 
disclosable pecuniary interest.

Committee 
administrator:

Democratic.Services@swdevon.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



Page No

1.  Apologies for Absence 

2.  Confirmation of Minutes 1 - 10

To approve and adopt as a correct record the Minutes of the 
Meeting of Council held on 28 September 2021

3.  Declarations of Interest

Members are invited to declare any personal or disclosable 
pecuniary interests, including the nature and extent of such 
interests they may have in any items to be considered at this 
meeting.

If Councillors have any questions relating to predetermination, 
bias or interests in items on this Summons, then please contact 
the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting.

4.  To receive communications from the Mayor or person 
presiding 

5.  Business brought forward by or with the consent of the 
Mayor 

6.  To respond to any questions submitted by the public and 
to receive deputations or petitions under Council 
Procedure Rule 21 

7.  To consider (if any) questions submitted under Council 
Procedure Rule 21 

8.  To consider motions of which notice has been duly 
submitted by Members in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule 15:

Proposed by Cllr Sellis:

“In view of the deteriorating state of West Devon Highways 
and, noting that Devon County Council had £20million 
reduced from their highway funding this year, West Devon 
Borough Council will write to all local MP’s asking them to 
seek fairer funding for our Borough.”

9.  To receive the Minutes of the following Committees, to 
note the delegated decisions and to consider the adoption 
of those Recommendations which require approval:

11 - 44



Page No

(i) Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Meeting held on 5 October 2021

(ii) Audit Committee
Meeting held on 2 November 2021

(iii) Hub Committee
Meeting held on 2 November 2021

Recommendations to agree:

HC 38/21 Planning Improvement Plan – Phase 2 
Resources

That Council be RECOMMENDED to:

1. employ six additional permanent posts (shared 
with South Hams District Council), being four 
planning specialists and two legal specialists, at 
an annual cost of £71,000 (the WDBC share of 
the costs), to be funded from additional planning 
income; and

2. increase the staffing budget by £71,000 and to 
increase the planning income target for 2022/23 
onwards by £71,000.

HC 41/21 Public Space Protection Order – 
Alcohol and Anti-Social Behaviour

That Council be RECOMMENDED to agree the 
Tavistock Meadows Alcohol and Anti-Social 
Behaviour Public Space Protection Order 2021 (as 
set out in Appendix A of the presented agenda 
report to the Hub Committee Meeting).

HC 43/21 Reports of Bodies: Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee – 5 October 2021

(ii) Lamerton Housing Report

That Council be RECOMMENDED to adopt a 
position to lobby Central Government and our local 
MPs to close the loophole that allows Small Business 
Rates Relief to second homeowners who rent their 
home out for 140 or more days per year.



Page No

(iv) Development Management and Licensing 
Committee

(v)
Meeting held on 14 September 2021

Meeting held on 12 October 2021

Meeting held on 9 November 2021

Recommendation to agree

DM&L.30 Three-Yearly Review of Gambling 
Statement of Licensing Principles

That Council be RECOMMENDED to adopt the 
amended draft Gambling Statement of Licensing 
Principles (as set out at Appendix A of the published 
agenda report presented to the Committee) for the 
period from 31 January 2022 to 30 January 2025.

10.  Council Appointments and Political Composition of the 
Council  - To follow                                                                                

11.  Annual Review of the Health and Safety Policy Statement 45 - 66

Dated this 22nd of November 2021

Andy Bates
Chief Executive



 
 

At the Meeting of the WEST DEVON BOROUGH COUNCIL held in the COUNCIL 
CHAMBER, KILWORTHY PARK, TAVISTOCK on TUESDAY the 28th day of 
SEPTEMBER 2021 at 4.00pm pursuant to Notice given and Summons duly served. 
 
Present   Cllr C Mott – The Mayor (In the Chair) 
 

Cllr K Ball  Cllr T Bolton 
Cllr A Bridgewater Cllr R Cheadle 
Cllr P Crozier  Cllr L Daniel   
Cllr M Davies  Cllr C Edmonds  
Cllr M Ewings Cllr S Hipsey   
Cllr N Jory  Cllr C Kemp   
Cllr P Kimber  Cllr T Leech 
Cllr J Moody  Cllr D Moyse 
Cllr R Musgrave Cllr T Pearce  
Cllr B Ratcliffe Cllr M Renders  
Cllr P Ridgers Cllr L Samuel  
Cllr D Sellis  Cllr T Southcott  
Cllr J Spettigue Cllr P Vachon  
Cllr L Wood  Cllr J Yelland  

 
  Chief Executive 

Monitoring Officer 
Section 151 Officer 
Director of Governance and Assurance 
Head of Strategy and Projects 
Democratic Services Manager 

 
 
CM 33/21 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Cllrs Coulson and Heyworth. 
 
 
CM 34/21 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES 

It was moved by Cllr N Jory, seconded by Cllr R Cheadle and upon the 
motion being submitted to the Meeting was declared to be CARRIED and 
“RESOLVED that the Council agree the Minutes of the 20 July 2021 
meeting as a true record.” 

 
 
CM 35/21 DECLARATION OF INTEREST 

The Mayor invited Members to declare any interests in the items of business 
to be considered during the course of the meeting, but there were none 
made. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



 
 

CM 36/21 BUSINESS BROUGHT FORWARD BY THE MAYOR 
 
(a) Cllr Robin Musgrave 

The Mayor advised the meeting that the Council had received formal 
notification from Cllr Musgrave of his intention, with effect from 30 
September 2021, to resign from the Office of West Devon Borough 
Council. 
 
At this point, Cllr Musgrave was invited to address the Council and he 
proceeded to express his pride at being a Member of the Council and 
he wished his fellow Members and officers his very best wishes for the 
future. 
 
On behalf of the Council, Cllr Crozier then proposed a vote of thanks to 
Cllr Musgrave for his exemplar service to the Council and the Bere 
Ferrers Community.  This proposition was subsequently seconded by 
Cllr Cheadle and, when put to the vote, was declared CARRIED. 
 

(b) Charity Golf Day 
The Mayor thanked those Members who had taken part in her Charity 
Golf Day on Friday, 24 September 2021 and advised the Meeting that 
the event had raised in excess of £800 towards her chosen charity (the 
Farming Community Network). 
 

(c) Upcoming Events 
The Mayor made particular reference to the following upcoming events: 
 
- The 150th anniversary celebrations for Okehampton Rail that were to 

be held on 2 October 2021; 
- A Tavistock Community Barn Dance that was to take place on 9 

October 2021; and 
- A community celebration in Okehampton was to be held on 22 and 

24 October 2021. 
 
 
CM 37/21 PETITION 

The Mayor advised Members that officers had been informed of the wish 
for representatives of the West Devon Climate and Ecological Emergency 
Bill Alliance to formally submit a petition to this meeting in support of the 
Climate and Ecological Emergency (CEE) Bill. 
 
As a result of the capacity restrictions in the Council Chamber associated 
with the COVID-19 Pandemic, officers read the following supporting 
statement on behalf of the representatives of the Alliance: 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



 
 

‘The West Devon CEE Bill Alliance wanted to find out how others in the area 
feel about the climate and nature crisis and if they support the CEE Bill.  To 
reach people, we started a petition and more importantly over the last few 
weeks we have been listening to and talking with people out and about in 
the Borough. 
 
The main view from people we listened to was that as well as working to 
bring developing countries on board we need to be doing more in this 
country so that we get on track to meet our own targets. These people are 
doing what they can at a household level to reduce their impact. They were 
keen to support the CEE Bill and for many it was good to learn they have a 
means to do so through our democratic process. 
 
Some people were most concerned about the vast quantity of emissions 
from China, they felt making reductions here is insignificant. As you can 
imagine, this was a good discussion point, as per head of population, China 
is way down the list with emissions, in addition a vast quantity of the 
emissions produced by China are due manufacture of goods that countries 
such as us import. When import / export emissions are put into calculations, 
this makes developed countries like the UK even more responsible for being 
leaders in change. 
 
Sadly, a significant number of people had no hope and talked about it being 
too late. There was also the view that nothing can be done to change the 
activities of large companies. It was good to be able to talk with these folk 
about how government can regulate companies and that governments can 
and should be working together through international meetings such as the 
imminent COP 26. 
 
People were interested in the role the Climate and Nature Assembly would 
play if the CEE Bill is enacted. The assembly would ensure a true cross 
section of the population are informed and consulted about options and 
contribute to government strategy. The rigour in the formation and 
methodology of the assembly means it would complement not replace the 
existing role of government advisors. 
 
Many children and young people spoke with us. They were all concerned 
about the future and all had ideas about what we should do, some were 
anxious, many were hopeful. Under 16-year-olds can’t sign the petition but 
they wrote messages on paper leaves to attach to our tree of hope.  Here 
are just a few: 

“It’s our job to fix this and we need to realise.”   “Save the fish and coral 
reefs.”  “We must save our world now.”  “Plant more trees.”   “Let’s not 
wreck the earth.”  “You need to care it’s my future that will be affected. 
Start doing stuff now.”  “Humans are destroying the world [that] they need 
to survive.” 

…and a quote that sums up the views of so many adults 

Page 3



 
 

“Please support climate action. We only have this planet for our children to 
inherit.” 

 

We ask you to vote for the motion to support this bill, your role in giving 
MPs a mandate to take action and in passing on the concerns and views 
of voters is so valuable. 

Thank you for your work. 

Best wishes, 
David Williams, Sian Aubrey, Chris Simpson, Graham Palmer, Sara 
Palmer, Jacky Hudswell. 

(PETITION: Signed by 426 people living in West Devon, over the age of 
16).” 
 
The Mayor proceeded to receive the petition on behalf of the Council and 
informed that a response would be provided to the Alliance representatives 
in accordance with the Council’s adopted Petition Scheme. 

 
 
CM.38/21 MOTION ON NOTICE 

 It was moved by Cllr L Daniel and seconded by Cllr L Wood: 
  
“This Council has formally recognised the climate and biodiversity 
emergency (May 2019), has signed The Devon Climate Declaration (July 
2019) and has a Climate Change and Biodiversity Strategy WDBC Climate 
Strategy. 
 
This Council is committed to actions to change behaviour to address the 
causes of this situation and mitigate the impacts. 
 
In line with the above, this Council supports the Climate and Ecological 
Emergency Bill proposed by a coalition of scientists, academics and lawyers 
with the aim of bringing the UK’s climate policy into one with evolving 
scientific evidence.  This proposed Bill is also supported by 110 cross-party 
members of parliament.  Nationally we need a strong legislative framework 
that embeds the Government’s targets in law, enabling us as supportive 
players, to plan and develop our future trajectories, to fit in with those 
targets. 
 
Council therefore resolves to: 

  
i. Support the Climate and Ecological Emergency Bill 
ii. Inform the local media of their decision. 
iii.    Write to local MPs, asking them to support the Bill. 
iv.    Write to the CEE Bill Alliance, the organisers of the campaign for the 

Bill, expressing its support (campaign@ceebill.uk).” 
 

Page 4



 
 

In her introduction, Cllr Daniel made particular reference to the petition that 
had been submitted by the CEE Bill Alliance and the contents of the 
supporting statement (Minute CM.37/21 above refers).  As the Bill was 
making its way through Parliamentary processes, Cllr Daniel hoped that the 
Council would provide its full backing by virtue of supporting her Motion on 
Notice. 
 
During the ensuing debate, the following points were raised: 
 
(a) In recognition of the Emergency declared by the Borough Council in May 

2019, a number of Members reiterated their ongoing commitment to the 
Climate Change and Biodiversity agenda; 
 

(b) Some concerns were highlighted over aspects of the CEE Bill that 
included: 

 
- the proposed establishment of an unaccountable Citizens’ 

Assembly; and 
- the potential for political confusion in light of the Government’s 

Environment Bill;  
 

(c) An amendment was PROPOSED and SECONDED that read as follows: 
 
“This Council has formally recognised the climate and biodiversity 
emergency (May 2019), has signed The Devon Climate Declaration 
(July 2019) and has a Climate Change and Biodiversity Strategy WDBC 
Climate Strategy. 
 
This Council is committed to actions to change behaviour to address the 
causes of this situation and mitigate the impacts. 
 
In line with the above, this Council supports the need for a strong 
legislative framework that embeds the Government’s targets in law, 
enabling us as supportive players, to plan and develop our future 
trajectories, to fit in with those targets. 
 
Council therefore resolves to:  
i. Support the Government’s Environment Bill 

ii.    Inform the local media of their decision. 

iii.   Write to local MPs, asking them to support the Bill.  

iv.   Continue to support Devon County Council through the Devon 
Climate Emergency Partnership.” 

In support of the amendment, Members felt that it recognised the steps 
that had already been undertaken by both the Council and Devon 
County Council and, when put to the vote, the amendment was declared 
CARRIED. 

Page 5



 
 

 
It was then “RESOLVED that this Council has formally recognised the 
climate and biodiversity emergency (May 2019,) has signed The Devon 
Climate Declaration (July 2019) and has a Climate Change and 
Biodiversity Strategy WDBC Climate Strategy. 
 
This Council is committed to actions to change behaviour to address the 
causes of this situation and mitigate the impacts. 
 
In line with the above, this Council supports the need for a strong 
legislative framework that embeds the Government’s targets in law, 
enabling us as supportive players, to plan and develop our future 
trajectories, to fit in with those targets. 
 
Council therefore resolves to:  
i. Support the Government’s Environment Bill 
ii. Inform the local media of their decision. 
iii. Write to local MPs, asking them to support the Bill.  
iv. Continue to support Devon County Council through the Devon 

Climate Emergency Partnership.” 
   
 
CM 39/21 MINUTES OF COMMITTEES 
 

a. Overview & Scrutiny Committee – 22 June 2021 
It was moved by Cllr M Ewings, seconded by Cllr P Kimber and upon 
being submitted to the Meeting was declared to be CARRIED and 
“RESOLVED that the Minutes of the 22 June 2021 meeting be 
received and noted”. 

 
  b. Audit Committee – 29 June 2021 and 7 September 2021 

It was moved by Cllr M Davies, seconded by Cllr K Ball and upon 
being submitted to the Meeting was declared to be CARRIED and 
“RESOLVED that the Minutes of the 29 June 2021 and 7 September 
2021 meetings be received and noted”. 

 
  c. Hub Committee – 21 September 2021 

It was moved by Cllr N Jory, seconded by Cllr C Edmonds and upon 
being submitted to the Meeting was declared to be CARRIED and 
“RESOLVED that the Minutes of the 21 September 2021 meeting be 
received and noted, with the exception of Recommendations HC 
24/21, HC 25/21, HC 27/21, HC 28/21, HC 29/21 and HC 30/21.” 

 
In respect of the Recommendations: 
 
It was noted that Recommendation HC 24/21 (A Plan for West 
Devon) was to be considered as a standalone agenda item later in 
the Meeting (Minute CM 40/21 below refers). 
 

Page 6



 
 

HC 25/21: ORCS Funding – Electric Charging Points 
It was moved by Cllr N Jory, seconded by Cllr C Edmonds and upon 
being submitted to the Meeting was declared to be CARRIED and 
“RESOLVED that: 
 
1. a Collaboration Agreement be entered into with the Devon and 

Torbay Residential Chargepoint Scheme for the installation of 
Electric Vehicle Charging Points; 

2. the potential sites (as listed in paragraph 1.3 of the presented 
agenda report to the Hub Committee Meeting) be approved as 
the location(s) for the installation of Electric Charging Points; and 

3. a lease be entered into with the appointed supplier for a ten year 
period.” 

 
HC 27/21: Medium Term Financial Strategy 2022/23 to 2024/25 
It was moved by Cllr N Jory, seconded by Cllr C Edmonds and upon 
being submitted to the Meeting was declared to be CARRIED and 
“RESOLVED that: 
 
1. the strategic intention be set to raise Council Tax by the maximum 

allowed in any given year, without triggering a Council Tax 
Referendum, to endeavour to continue to deliver services. (NB 
the actual council tax for any given year will be decided by Council 
in the preceding February); 

 
2. the principle of using funding in the Business Rates Retention 

Reserve, to smooth out the anticipated volatility in business rates 
income over the next three years be adopted (as set out in section 
3.19 of the published agenda report). (NB. the volatility is due to 
the business rates baseline reset anticipated in 2023/24 (this will 
mean that the Council will have negative revenue support grant) 
and the predicted loss of business rates pooling gains at the same 
time);  

 
3. the Council continue to respond to Government consultations on 

Business Rates Reform; 
 

4. the Council continue to actively lobby and engage with the 
Government, Devon MPs, South West Councils and other sector 
bodies such as the District Councils’ Network and the Rural 
Services Network, for a realistic business rates baseline to be set 
for the Council for 2023 onwards, when the business rates reset 
happens; 

 
5. the Council continue to lobby in support of the Government 

eliminating Negative Revenue Support Grant in 2022/23 (and 
thereafter) and continues to lobby for Rural Services Delivery 
Grant allocations which adequately reflect the cost of rural service 
provision; and 

Page 7



 
 

 
6. the forecast budget gap for 2022/23 of £78,731 (1% of the current 

Net Budget of £7.3million) and the position for future years be 
noted.” 

 
HC 28/21: Month 4 Revenue Budget Monitoring 2021/22 
It was moved by Cllr N Jory, seconded by Cllr C Edmonds and upon 
being submitted to the Meeting was declared to be CARRIED and 
“RESOLVED that funding of £190,000 be utilised from the COVID-
19 Losses Earmarked Reserve in 2021/22 to fund COVID-19 
expenditure in 2021/22 and the projected net losses on car parking 
income in 2021/22.” 
 
HC 29/21: Capital Budget Monitoring 2021/22 
It was moved by Cllr N Jory, seconded by Cllr C Edmonds and upon 
being submitted to the Meeting was declared to be CARRIED and 
“RESOLVED that the 2021/22 budget for Community Project Grants 
be increased from £15,000 to £30,000, with the additional £15,000 
being funded from the New Homes Bonus Reserve.” 
 
HC 30/21: Planning Improvement Plan 
It was moved by Cllr N Jory, seconded by Cllr C Edmonds and upon 
being submitted to the Meeting was declared to be CARRIED and 
“RESOLVED that the cost of temporary planning staffing resources 
of £60,400 (the Borough Council share of the cost) be funded from 
the additional planning income generated in 2021/22 (as set out in 
Section 2.6 of the published agenda report presented to the Hub 
Committee meeting).” 

 
 
CM 40/21 ‘A PLAN FOR WEST DEVON’ – DRAFT STRATEGY 

Consideration was given to a report that summarised the responses to the 
public consultation exercise on the draft ‘A Plan for West Devon’ and 
recommended that the draft Strategy be adopted. 
 
In his introduction, the Leader highlighted that: 
 
- all Members and lead officers should be thanked for ensuring that the 

draft Strategy was delivered on such a short timescale.  In so doing, the 
Leader acknowledged that the tight timescale had impacted upon the 
timing and length of the public consultation exercise.  Nonetheless, the 
responses received during the public consultation exercise had been very 
positive; and 

- the consultation response received from Devon County Council (DCC) 
informing that the draft Strategy was very closely aligned to the 
equivalent plan being developed by DCC.  The Leader felt this to be very 
encouraging. 

 
 

Page 8



 
 

During the subsequent discussion, the following points were raised: 
 
(a) At the invitation of the Mayor, the Section 151 Officer was asked for her 

views on the affordability of the draft Strategy.  In so doing, the Officer 
expressed the view that the resource requirements were affordable to 
the Council; 
 

(b) The importance of regular monitoring of the thematic delivery plans was 
recognised.  In addition, Members noted that the Hub Advisory Groups 
would have an equally important role to play in the ongoing monitoring 
process; 

 
(c) A number of Members echoed the introductory comments of the Leader 

and put on record their thanks to both lead officers and lead Members 
for achieving both an excellent draft Strategy and underpinning thematic 
delivery plans.  A Member also made the point that the lead Members 
and Hub Advisory Groups would have a key role to play in evaluating 
the finer details that were contained within each of the consultation 
responses that had been received; 

 
(d) The greater emphasis being given to performance management and 

SMART targets within the draft Strategy was welcomed; 
 

(e) Whilst accepting that the Plans would evolve, a Member asked that the 
relevant Hub Advisory Groups give consideration to: 

 
o An increased emphasis being given to young people; and 
o The need to look at potential measures being imposed to restrict the 

number of second and holiday homes in the Borough. 
 

It was then proposed by Cllr N Jory, seconded by Cllr C Edmonds and upon 
being submitted to the Meeting was declared to be CARRIED and 
”RESOLVED that: 
 
1. the results of the consultation on the draft ‘A Plan for West Devon’ 

Strategy be noted; 
 

2. the ‘A Plan for West Devon’ and the thematic delivery plans be adopted; 
 

3. the allocation of existing funding (as set out in paragraph 7.2 of the 
published agenda report) be noted; 

 
4. the additional £122,000 of cost pressures for 2022/23 and £168,000 for 

2023/24 be approved (NB. the £168,000 includes the £122,000, 
therefore an additional £46,000 in 2023/24); and  

 
5. £246,000 of Earmarked Reserves be used for the content of the Delivery 

Plans (as set out in Section 7 of the published agenda report).” 
 

Page 9



 
 

 
CM 41/21 BRIDESTOWE AND SOURTON NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN 

The Council considered a report that sought to approve the making 
(adoption) of the Bridestowe and Sourton Neighbourhood Development 
Plan. 
 
In discussion, the following points were raised:- 
 
(a) The local Ward Members thanked the Neighbourhood Planning Group 

for all their hard work in reaching this point; 
 

(b) It was confirmed that the reference to ‘Highampton’ in the published 
agenda report was an error that should be ignored; 

 
(c) The Chairman of the Development Management & Licensing Committee 

reminded the Meeting that Neighbourhood Plans had only limited weight 
in planning terms until they were formally made (adopted).  As a result, 
Members urged local Neighbourhood Planning Groups to make swift 
progress in their respective plans and Developers to take heed of the 
contents of an adopted Neighbourhood Plan. 

 
It was then proposed by Cllr C Mott, seconded by Cllr T Southcott and upon 
being submitted to the Meeting was declared to be CARRIED and 
”RESOLVED that the Bridestowe and Sourton Neighbourhood 
Development Plan be made (adopted).” 

 
 
CM 42/21 WAIVER OF SIX-MONTH COUNCILLOR ATTENDANCE RULE 

As previously advised, the Mayor reminded Members that this agenda item 
had been withdrawn from the Summons in advance of this Council meeting. 
 

 
 

(The Meeting terminated at 5:20 pm) 
 

___________________ 
Mayor 

Page 10



 
 

At a Meeting of the OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE held at the 
Council Chamber, Council Offices, Kilworthy Park, Drake Road, 
TAVISTOCK on TUESDAY the 5th day of OCTOBER 2021 at 2:00 pm. 

 
 

Present:   Cllr M Ewings – Chairman 
Cllr P Kimber – Vice-Chairman 
 

 Cllr A Coulson Cllr D Sellis  
 Cllr N Heyworth Cllr T Southcott  
 Cllr S Hipsey Cllr J Spettigue  
 Cllr D Moyse Cllr P Vachon  
 Cllr L Samuel Cllr L Wood  
    

     Deputy Chief Executive 
Director of Place and Enterprise 
Democratic Services Officer 
Specialist – IT 
Specialist - Communications 

 
Also in Attendance: Cllrs P Crozier, L Daniel, C Edmonds, N Jory, T 

Pearce, and J Yelland (virtual)  
 
    
*O&S 10 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

Apologies for absence for this meeting were received from Cllrs C Kemp 
and J Moody.  It was acknowledged that, with effect from 30 September 
2021, Cllr R Musgrave had resigned from the Office of West Devon Borough 
Council and therefore this Committee was carrying a vacancy until a new 
Member was elected.  

 
 
O&S 11 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES 

The minutes of the Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held 
on 22 June 2021 were confirmed by the Meeting as a true and correct 
record.  

 
The informal notes and recommendations arising from the Informal Meeting 
held on 27 July 2021 were reviewed and noted.  With regard to the informal 
recommendations 
 
a) Devon Home Choice Review: 

 
RECOMMENDED 

 The Committee RECOMMEND to the Hub Committee that the Council 
continues to be a Member of Devon Home Choice. 

 
b) Performance Management Report: 

RESOLVED 

Page 11

Agenda Item 9



 
 

The Committee RESOLVES to note: 
 

1.  the performance figures shown in the Pentana report.  
 
2.  that Members have reviewed the information provided in the 

dashboards and provide feedback to the portfolio holder on any 
additional measures required to scrutinise performance. 

 
 

*O&S 12 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
Members and officers were invited to declare any interests in the items of 
business to be considered during the course of this meeting but there were 
none made. 

 
 
*O&S 13 PUBLIC FORUM 
 The Chairman confirmed that no formal requests had been received in 

accordance with the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules. 
 
 
*O&S 14 TRAFFIC CONGESTION IN WEST DEVON 

The Committee were given a presentation by Cllr Stuart Hughes, the 
Portfolio Holder for Highways, and Mr John Fewings, Neighbourhood 
Highways Manager (South), both of Devon County Council (DCC).  During 
the presentation, the following points were made: 
 

 There were two main types of works on the highway: road works 
(road maintenance works) and street works (mainly utilities works). 

 Road works were generally known well in advance for budget, 
design, and consultation purposes.  Utility works tended to be more 
problematic because there was less time to plan and it was a legal 
requirement to concur with the organisation’s needs if at all possible. 
It was noted that utility organisations were now required to apply for 
a permit for street works.  

 Meetings were held with Utility organisations at the beginning of the 
year to try to plan what activities there would be around the area 
throughout the year, to try to co-ordinate works, but it was accepted 
that unforeseen emergency works would always need to be dealt 
with quickly. 

 Planning guidelines altered in recent years making it much more 
difficult to refuse a planning application for highways reasons. 

 It was acknowledged that many major highways were close to 
capacity so any small event, eg road works, could inevitably cause 
long delays and added congestion. 

 The Strategic planning team annually reviewed its local transport 
plan, which included cycle routes and bypasses.  Following a 
question asked by the Chair for an overview of strategic planning and 
any correlation between that and Local Plans to see any impact on 

Page 12



 
 

roads, the Officer offered to send a link to Devon County Council’s 
(DCC) strategic documents. 

 Cllr Hughes confirmed that officers from West Devon Borough 
Council would discuss all new proposed developments with their 
DCC planning colleagues to review the potential impacts on nearby 
roads. 

 Following a question regarding speeding within the Dartmoor 
National Park area, the officer outlined the process required for the 
introduction of a speed limit on the Moor and the need to request for 
individual speed signs to be erected on the road.  

 It was confirmed that DCC held a capital drainage budget and a 
revenue drainage budget: both budgets were described as limited. 
DCC would soon be asking local Town and Parish Councils what 
were their priorities and the responses received would be used to 
determine which schemes could be implemented.  Many under 
highway drains were at capacity, therefore Cllr Hughes encouraged 
Members to canvas their local MPs, following a reduction of £20 
million from the Highways budget last year. Any construction on the 
roads would look at drainage issues at that point. 

 Following a question regarding the severe traffic congestion in 
Okehampton Town Centre, it was confirmed that three large 
shopping centres had been built just off the main street which had 
impacted on vehicular movements.  The re-opening of the rail station 
should help in this regard.  Medieval towns like Okehampton were 
trying to cope with modern traffic which was very difficult.  Signals in 
middle Okehampton were synchronised to try to ensure movement 
through the town centre as quickly as possible but these were 
restricted. 

 Clarification was given on how capacity was defined for roads and it 
was stated that most town centres were very close to their capacity.  
The Officer offered to send the definitive figures to the Committee but 
pointed out that the figure was often lower in towns as the street 
layout would impact, eg bus stops. 

 Single track and narrow roads should be limited to 30mph was one 
Member’s view.  It was confirmed that a blanket policy of 30mph was 
not possible 

 Following several questions from Members, the Officer confirmed he 
would be happy to pass on any queries to his colleague in Highways 
Planning.  It was agreed that any questions would be sent to the 
Democratic Services Specialist for forward transmission. 

 It was agreed that the Officer would circulate details relating to the 
‘Doing What Matters’ budget changes. 

 Although the Officer confirmed there was a disconnect between 
highways planning and function areas, it was confirmed that the two 
areas held regular meetings to review up and coming developments 
and to review Section 106 monies and their potential uses. 

 Following a question regarding the Council’s declaration of a climate 
change and biodiversity emergency, it was confirmed that DCC had 
been actively promoting cycling and walking for many years.  It was 

Page 13



 
 

acknowledged that it was harder for those living in rural areas to 
access public transport as often provision did not exist.  Cllr Hughes 
agreed to update the Committee on the A386 cycling route 
proposals. 

 One Member queried what measurements determined responses on 
planning applications after being informed that there was only one 
yardstick used, and that was how many accidents, major or minor, 
and number of deaths had occurred in the vicinity of the application.  
The DCC Officer agreed to find out and update the Committee 
outside of this meeting. 

 It was explained that roads were prioritised for repairs through 
information garnered from Neighbourhood Officers, and by using two 
types of scanning device: one for road deformation and another that 
registered cracking and surface deterioration.  The collation of this 
information produced a county wide map highlighting road conditions 
which would be used to prioritise repairs.  Major roads were 
prioritised over minor roads.  Further to a question from a Member, it 
was confirmed that workers should be filling all nearby potholes and 
not just the one that had been assigned for filling.  The Officer stated 
that he would remind the contractor of this requirement.  The 
reduction in the Highway’s budget meant that the repairs were 
severely limited. 

 Following a question about speed limits in the Borough, it was 
outlined that a Borough wide speed limit of 20mph would not be 
possible but specific areas could be added to the list waiting for 
review.  It was requested that any such areas should be highlighted 
with the relevant County Councillor. 

 
The Chair thanked Cllr Hughes and Mr Fewings for their time, and confirmed 
that the Democratic Services Specialist would send a list of the items to be 
investigated further following this Meeting.  

 
 
*O&S 15 LAMERTON HOUSING REPORT 

 The Lead Hub Member for Housing introduced the report and explained the 
report was as had been presented to the Hub Committee Meeting on 16 
March 2021 and therefore opened up to questions. 
 
In response to questions, the following points were made: 
 

 The strong local opposition to this proposal was, in part, due to 
opposition to the developing Neighbourhood Plan. 

 The formation of a new Neighbourhood Planning group was being 
supported by officers, and it was hoped that a proposal could be 
developed that could be supported by all in Lamerton. 

 The viability of the project would also now be impacted by the 
increase in construction costs in recent months which would counter 
the recent rise in house prices. 

Page 14



 
 

 It was confirmed that £135,000 had been spent on developing the 
project which would not be recoverable. 

 One Member suggested looking at the option of zed pod housing. 
 The Officer was requested to circulate the figures showing the 

relationship of salary to house prices across Britain. 
 Homes was a significant part of the new ‘Plan For West Devon’ and 

officer resources would be reviewed to ensure housing had sufficient 
resource. 

 The housing situation was exacerbated by many houses in West 
Devon being purchased for second homes and/or letting purposes.  
It was agreed that there was insufficient social housing provision in 
the Borough. 

 It was confirmed that officers would soon be meeting with the Chief 
Executive of Live West to discuss the recent sales of affordable 
housing. 

 Homes was agreed to be the first corporate theme to be reviewed by 
the Committee. 

 
It was then: 
 

RESOLVED 
 
That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee: 

 
1) NOTE the follow up report on the Lamerton Scheme; 
 

and, 
 

2) RECOMMEND that the Hub Committee RECOMMEND to Council that, 
we, as a Council, adopt a position to lobby Central Government, and our 
local MPs, to close the loophole which allows Small Business Rates 
Relief to second home owners who rent their home out for more than 
140 days a year. 

 
 
*O&S 16 RURAL BROADBAND: VERBAL UPDATE 
 The Community Digital Specialist was unable to join the meeting so her 

bullet point update was circulated after the meeting. 
 

 
*O&S 17 TASK AND FINISH GROUP UPDATES (if any) 
 There were no updates. 
 
 
*O&S 18 O&S ANNUAL WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22 
 It was noted that the next meeting (to be held on 16 November) would 

include Cllr Davies and Mr Jones from Devon County Council to update the 
Committee on the Okehampton Rail line and public transport.  The agenda 
would also include: 

Page 15



 
 

 
Review of Localities: Annual Report 
Community Safety partnership 
Council delivery on housing 
Overview & Scrutiny Annual Report: 2020/21 
Work programme 

  
 It was agreed to consider setting up a task and finish group to look at 

Housing provision and the role of Live West. 
 
 Following the questions raised in this meeting regarding Highways and 

Planning, it was agreed to invite DCC’s Portfolio Holder for Planning and a 
senior officer to the meeting on 15 February 2022 to give a strategic 
overview of Planning and to review the impact of the environmental crisis. 
 
The Police and Crime Commissioner had replied that they were unable to 
attend.     
 

 
*O&S 19 MEMBER LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITIES ARISING 

FROM THIS MEETING 
 Members referred to the earlier interesting discussions on both the housing 

and strategic planning issues facing the Borough and recognised that these 
would be subject to a great deal of ongoing consideration by the Borough 
Council. 

 
 

 (The meeting terminated at 4:08pm) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_________________ 
Chairman 

Page 16



 
At a Meeting of the AUDIT COMMITTEE held in the Council Chamber, 
Council Offices, Kilworthy Park, Drake Road, TAVISTOCK on 
TUESDAY the 2nd day of November 2021 at 11am 
 
Present: Cllr M Davies (Chairman) 
 Cllr K Ball 
 Cllr A Bridgewater 
                                        Cllr M Renders 
                                        Cllr P Ridgers 

                                                              Cllr J Yelland 
                                             

                                                     
Officers in attendance: Section 151 Officer 
 Deputy Section 151 Officer 
 Democratic Services Officer 
                                          Head of Strategy and Projects 
                                          External Auditor 

                                                                            
                                                    
Also in attendance:       Cllr C Edmonds (lead Hub Committee        

Member)  
                      
                     As a mark of respect following the tragic recent deaths of Sir David 
                     Amess MP and Mr James Brokenshire MP, those Members 
                     and Officers in attendance stood and observed a minutes silence. 
                                
*AC 8 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES 

The Minutes of the Committee Meeting held on 7 September 2021 
were confirmed by the Committee as a true and correct record. 

  
 
*AC 9    GRANT THORNTON REPORT: AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT 2020-21 
                     A report was considered that set out The Audit Findings by Grant 

Thornton. The External Auditor explained to the Committee that  
                     he would be issuing an unqualified opinion on the financial statements  

for the 2020-21 period. Grant Thornton were unable to formally 
conclude the audit due to work on the whole of the government account  
return. HM Treasury are yet to issue a data collection tool to officers to 
enable them to complete the work. Once completed the auditors need 
to review and submit assurances to the National Audit Office. This is a 
national issue. 

                     Risks identified had not changed. Pension fund liability valuation and 
valuation of councils land and property and investment property. Covid 
grants with various schemes and terms meant officers had to assess 
each individual grant separately. The auditors did significant testing in 
this area and found the accounting appropriate. The running of the 
transactional listings from the ledger system is currently very time 
consuming and needs to be made efficient for both the auditors and 
officers too and a recommendation has been made. 

                      
                      In discussion, reference was made to:- 
 

Page 17



   Talks with the software provider to ensure the running of the  
transactional reports in the ledger is less time consuming as it 
currently is in regard to officer time. 

    Delivery plan for a new performance management reporting 
system, hopefully will be delivered before the end of the 
calendar year.    

    Debt write off report showing £60,000. The Committee 
thanked the debt recovery team for their work 
 

 
                      It was then RESOLVED that the Grant Thornton Audit Findings Report 

2020-21 be noted. 
 

 
 
*AC10           GRANT THORNTON REPORT: AUDITORS ANNUAL REPORT  
                      2020-21 
                      The report was introduced to the Committee by the External Auditor.  
 
                       In discussion, reference was made to:- 
 

    Devon District procurement – to purchase locally where 
possible. Work closely with District colleagues.  

    Code of Conduct and Whistleblowing Policies to become an 
annual review for both staff and Members. 

    £435,000 was paid from reserves to support the Fusion 
Leisure contract. Successfully lobbied to secure funds of 
£90,000 from the National Lottery Fund to passport to Fusion 
Leisure. Work was commissioned nationally through the LGA 
and the support the authority was providing was along similar 
lines to other authorities. 

    Seamoor Lotto income. Communications campaign to push 
the lotto during the winter. Since it’s launch in 2018 the Lotto 
has raised £75,000 for 103 good causes across both West 
Devon and South Hams. Being a community lottery there 
cannot be a profit, for every £1 ticket sold, 50p goes to a good 
cause, 10p goes to a central pot which goes to help other 
good causes through Crowdfund, 20p towards prizes and 20p 
to the Lottery Management company. 

    Pension valuation liability has increased significantly from 
£21.8m to £27.1m at 31 March 2021 but it was noted that this 
doesn’t impact on the Council’s bottom line and is a notional 
figure. The triennial valuation sets the employer contribution. 
Valuation due to take place again in 2022/23 as at 31 March 
2022. A representative from Devon County Pension Fund will 
be attending at a future Audit Committee meeting.  

    The bank rate went to a historic low, with the authority 
obtaining £37,000 investment income in 2020/21. 

                       
                      The Committee thanked the finance team for their work in such a 

challenging time.  
 
                      It was then RESOVED that the Grant Thornton Auditors Annual Report 

2020-21 be noted. 
 Page 18



*AC11           AUDITED ANNUAL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS REPORT 2020-21 
                      Cllr Edmonds, Lead Hub Committee Member introduced the report. 
 
                     It was then RESOLVED that the Audited Annual Statement of Accounts 

Report 2020-21 be noted. 
 
AC12           ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT FOR 2020/21 
                      The Committee was presented with the Annual Treasury report. 
 
                      In discussion, reference was made to:- 

 The investment in the South West Mutual Bank. The Lead Hub 
Member advised he had attended the AGM of the bank and the 
directors were taking steps to make it a success. 

 
 
                     It was then RESOLVED that the Committee: 
 

1. APPROVED the actual 2020/21 prudential and treasury 
indicators in the report.  

2. Noted the Annual Treasury Management report for 2020/21. 
 
*AC13          AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 
                     The Work Programme was presented to the Committee. 
 
                     It was then RESOLVED that the Committee noted the Work 

Programme. 
 
*AC14          DATE FOR DECEMBER AUDIT COMMITTEE 
                     The Audit Committee agree the date of the next Audit Committee to be 

7 December at 9.30am 
 
 

 (The Meeting terminated at 12.30 pm) 
 
Dated this  

 
 

Chairman 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



   

At a Meeting of the HUB COMMITTEE held in the Council Chamber, Kilworthy Park, 
Tavistock on TUESDAY the 2nd day of November 2021 at 2:00 pm 

 
 

Present:    Cllr N Jory – Chairman 
    Cllr R Cheadle – Vice Chairman 
 

 Cllr P Crozier    Cllr L Daniel 
 Cllr C Edmonds   Cllr C Mott 
 Cllr B Ratcliffe 
    

In attendance:        Chief Executive 
 Monitoring Officer 
 Section 151 Officer 
 Director of Governance and Assurance 
 Director of Place and Enterprise 
 Democratic Services Manager 
 Head of Development Management 
 Senior Specialist – Place Making 
 Head of Environmental Health (via Teams) 
 Senior Specialist – Environmental Health 
 Specialist – Leisure (via Teams) 

 
Other Members in attendance: 
Cllrs Renders and Yelland 
 
Other Members in attendance (via Teams): 
Cllr Wood 

 
 
*HC 32/21  MINUTES SILENCE 
 As a mark of respect following the tragic recent deaths of Sir David Amess MP 

and Mr James Brokenshire MP, those Members and Officers in attendance 
stood and observed a minutes silence in their memory. 

 
 
*HC 33/21 APOLOGIES 
 There were apologies for absence received for this Meeting from Cllrs A F 

Leech and T G Pearce. 
 
 
*HC 34/21 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members were invited to declare any interests in the items of business to be 
discussed and there were none made. 

 
 
*HC 35/21     MINUTES 

The Minutes of the Hub Committee meeting held on 21 September 2021 were 
confirmed as a correct record.  

 
 
*HC 36/21 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 
 It was noted that no Public Questions had been received in accordance with 

the Hub Committee Procedure Rules. 
 
 

Page 21



   

*HC 37/21 HUB COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN 
Members were presented with the Hub Committee Forward Plan that set out 
items on the agenda for Hub Committee meetings for the next four months.   
 
In discussion, it was agreed that the Leader would discuss with officers the 
need to schedule in further reviews of the thematic delivery plans that would 
underpin the recently adopted ‘Plan for West Devon’ and that this would be 
reflected in the next published edition of the Forward Plan. 
 
The Leader also made reference to the recent discussions that had taken 
place in respect of the housing situation and it was his intention to request 
that officers present a Housing Options review paper to the next Hub 
Committee meeting to be held on 7 December 2021.  This addition was 
welcomed by the wider Committee membership. 

 
 
HC 38/21 PLANNING IMPROVEMENT PLAN – PHASE 2 RESOURCES 

Consideration was given to a report that set out the latest phase (phase 2) of 
the Planning Improvement Plan.  In particular, the report outlined the assessed 
need in terms of additional planning and legal specialist officers to support the 
planning and enforcement functions. 

 
It was then RESOLVED that:  
 
1. Council be RECOMMENDED to employ six additional permanent posts 

(shared with South Hams District Council), being four planning specialists 
and two legal specialists, at an annual cost of £71,000 (the WDBC share 
of the costs), to be funded from additional planning income; 
 

2. Council be RECOMMENDED to increase the staffing budget by £71,000 
and to increase the planning income target for 2022/23 onwards by 
£71,000; and 

 
3. It be noted that a further (phase 3) report will be presented to the Hub 

Committee at its next meeting to be held on 7 December 2021. 
 

 
*HC 39/21 TENANCY STRATEGY REVIEW 2021 
 Consideration was given to a report that sought approval of an updated 

Tenancy Strategy for 2021. 
 
 During discussion, the following points were raised:- 
 

(a) A lengthy discussion ensued with regard to housing disposals in the 
Borough and, whilst it was acknowledged that the Council had limited 
powers in this respect, it was noted that the Chief Executive would reflect 
the concerns raised by Members at an upcoming meeting with his 
counterparts from the three largest Registered Social Landlords in the 
Borough.  Furthermore, it was agreed that the issue of housing disposals 
would be included as part of the Housing Options paper that was to be 
presented to the next Hub Committee meeting on 7 December 2021 
(Minute *HC 37/21 above refers); 
 

(b) Officers confirmed that the Council’s Environmental Health service had a 
role to play in the event of poor quality housing standards being found 
within the Housing Stock of a Registered Social Landlord. 

Page 22



   

 
It was then RESOLVED that: 
 
1. the updated Tenancy Strategy (as set out at Appendix 2 of the presented 

agenda report) be approved; and 
 

2. authority be delegated to the Head of Housing, in consultation with the lead 
Hub Committee Member for Homes, to make any necessary minor 
amendments prior to formal publication. 

 
 
*HC 40/21 FUSION LIFESTYLE – LEISURE CONTRACT SUPPORT UPDATE 

Consideration was given to a report that presented the performance of the 
Fusion contract to date; wider market trends; and the financial information on 
Fusion’s performance in 2021. 

 
In debate, the following points were raised:- 

 
(a) In light of Members wishing to ask questions on aspects of the exempt 

appendices, it was PROPOSED and SECONDED and when put to the 
vote declared CARRIED that: 
 
‘In accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public and press be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the following item of business as the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A to the Act is 
involved.’ 
 
Once all Members were content that they had no further questions on the 
exempt appendices, it was then PROPOSED and SECONDED and when 
put to the vote declared CARRIED that: ‘the press and public be re-
admitted to the meeting’. 
 

(b) Some Members expressed their concerns over aspects of Fusion’s current 
performance that included: 
 
- the general cleanliness within the Leisure Centres; 
- the attitude of some staff members; and 
- the apparent lack of any promotion or marketing campaigns to 

encourage increased Centre membership. 
 
As a result of these concerns, coupled with an imminent performance 
meeting being held between Council officers and Fusion representatives, 
the following alternative recommendation was PROPOSED and 
SECONDED and when put to the vote was declared CARRIED:- 
 
1. That the performance of the Fusion contract to date; wider market 

trends; and the financial information on Fusion’s performance in 2021 
be noted; and 

 
2. That consideration of the contract variation and changes to the 

management fee profile be deferred pending further discussions with 
Fusion and that a further report be presented by the Director of Place 
and Enterprise to the next meeting of the Hub Committee. 

 Page 23



   

(c) It was agreed that reference to a sample of the monitoring results of both 
the water quality and air handling units within the Centres would be 
included as part of the agenda report to be presented to the next meeting 
of the Hub Committee; 
 

(d) Members noted that there was a commitment to re-establish the Leisure 
Centre Task and Finish Group during this Council Administration. 

 
It was then RESOLVED that: 
 
1. the performance of the Fusion contract to date; wider market trends; and 

the financial information on Fusion’s performance in 2021 be noted; 
 

2. consideration of the contract variation and changes to the management fee 
profile be deferred pending further discussions with Fusion and that a 
further report be presented by the Director of Place and Enterprise to the 
next meeting of the Hub Committee. 

 
 
HC 41/21 PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER – ALCOHOL AND ANTI-

SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR 
A report was considered that sought to recommend to Council that an Alcohol 
and Anti-Social Behaviour Public Space Protection Order should be made in 
relation to an area within the West Devon Borough. 
 
In discussion, the following points were raised:- 
 
(a) Some concerns were raised that adoption of the Order may unduly raise 

public aspirations especially when considering the current resource 
pressures on both the Police and the Borough Council; 
 

(b) It was noted that adoption of the Order would enable for the removal of 
alcohol from individuals and groups in that area who were deemed to be 
creating a disturbance and/or public nuisance; 

 
(c) Whilst noting that there were other areas within Tavistock that were 

generating a number of instances of Anti-Social Behaviour, Members also 
recognised that this report had been presented in response to a direct 
request from Tavistock Town Council; 

 
(d) Members emphasised the need for a communications and public 

awareness strategy to be adopted to underpin this Order. 
 

It was then RESOLVED that Council be RECOMMENDED to agree the 
Tavistock Meadows Alcohol and Anti-Social Behaviour Public Space 
Protection Order 2021 (as set out in Appendix A of the presented agenda 
report). 
 
 

*HC 42/21 WRITE-OFF REPORT 
The Committee considered a report that informed Members of the proposal to 
write-off a series of debts with a value of more than £5,000 for the period from 
1 April 2021 to 30 September 2021. 

 
  
 

Page 24



   

In discussion, the lead Hub Committee Member for Communications 
highlighted the recently adopted Consultation and Engagement Strategy and 
felt that this agenda item was an example of a matter that could warrant further 
clarification to the general public.  In expanding upon the point, the Member 
felt that the adopted Strategy required greater recognition in the Council’s 
Committee report template. 
 
It was then RESOLVED that: 
 
1. it be noted that, in accordance with Financial Regulations, the Section 151 

Officer has authorised the write-off of individual West Devon Borough 
Council debts totalling £50,262.73 as detailed in Tables 1 and 2 of the 
presented agenda report; and 
 

2. approval be given to the write-off of individual debts in excess of £5,000 
(totalling £12,357.71) as set out in Table 3 of the presented agenda report. 

 
 

HC 43/21 REPORTS OF OTHER BODIES 
 

(a) Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meeting – 5 October 2021 
 
(i) Devon Home Choice Review 

It was RESOLVED that the Council continue to be a member of 
Devon Home Choice. 

 
(ii) Lamerton Housing Report 

It was RESOLVED that Council be RECOMMENDED to adopt a 
position to lobby Central Government and our local MPs to close 
the loophole that allows Small Business Rates Relief to second 
homeowners who rent their home out for 140 or more days per year. 

 

(The meeting terminated at 3.30 pm) 

 
_____________ 

Chairman 
 
 
(NOTE: THESE DECISIONS WILL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM THURSDAY, 11 
NOVEMBER 2021, WITH THE EXCEPTION OF MINUTES HC 38/21 PARTS 1 AND 2, 
HC 41/21, HC 43/21(a)(ii) WHICH ARE RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE COUNCIL 
MEEITNG TO BE HELD ON 30 NOVEMBER 2021, UNLESS CALLED IN, IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH SCRUTINY PROCEDURE RULE 18)
 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes of a meeting of the WEST DEVON DEVELOPMENT 
MANAGEMENT & LICENSING COMMITTEE held on TUESDAY the 
14th day of SEPTEMBER 2021 at 10.00am at the CHAMBER, 
KILWORTHY PARK 

 
 

Present: Cllr J Yelland – Chairman 
                      Cllr T Pearce – Vice Chairman 
         
 Cllr R Cheadle        Cllr S Hipsey  

                                Cllr T Leech                    Cllr C Mott                                                        
                      Cllr D Moyse                    Cllr B Ratcliffe 

           Cllr T Southcott         Cllr P Vachon 
            

    
Senior Development Management Officer (AHS) 
Highways Officer, Devon County Council (PT) 
Solicitor (DF) 
Heritage Officer (GL) 
Democratic Services Officer (JY)    

 
 
*DM&L.8      APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
                     There were apologies received from Cllr Renders. 
 
 
*DM&L.9 DECLARATION OF INTEREST 

Members were invited to declare any interests in the items of business 
to be considered. Cllr T Leech declared a disclosable pecuniary interest 
in application 0136/21/ARM due to his long term involvement with, and 
cited objection to, this proposal.  Cllr Leech left the Committee Room 
for this application and did not vote thereon. 
 
Cllrs T Pearce and B Ratcliffe declared a personal interest in all 
applications by virtue of being Members of the Devon Building Control 
Partnership.  They remained in the meeting and took part in the debate 
and vote thereon. 
 
Cllr J Yelland declared an interest in application 0136/21/ARM as she 
had been contacted, as Ward Member, by an objector to the 
application, to clarify the speaking process.  However she remained of 
an open mind and prepared to listen to all views, therefore she 
remained in the meeting and took part in the debate and vote thereon. 
  

 
*DM&L.10 URGENT BUSINESS 
  There was no urgent business brought forward to this Meeting. 
 
 
*DM&L.11 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES 

The Minutes of the Development Management and Licensing 
Committee Meeting held on 15th June 2021 were confirmed as a correct 
record. 

 
 

Page 27



*DM&L.12 PLANNING, LISTED BUILDING, TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 
AND ENFORCEMENT REPORTS 

                     The Committee proceeded to consider the application(s) that had been 
prepared by the Development Management Specialists and considered 
also the comments of the Town and Parish Councils together with other 
representations received, which were listed within the presented 
agenda report and summarised below, and RESOLVED that: 

      
(a) Application No: 0136/21/ARM      Ward: Okehampton South 

 
Site Address: “Land at SX 603 953”, Exeter Road, Okehampton 

                              
Development: READVERTISEMENT (revised plans received) 
Application for approval of reserved matters following outline 
approval 0032/18/OPA for 50 No. dwellings, including 40% 
affordable 

       
                                   Speakers included: 
 
                           Objector – Mr Simon Thomas 
                           Agent – Ms Eve Somerville, Persimmon Homes 
                           Ward Member – Cllrs Yelland and Vachon 
                             
                           RECOMMENDATION: Conditional Approval  
 

 
Conditions list in brief:  
 
1. Standard Reserved Matters time limit  
2. Adherence to plans list  
3. Gates to be 1.8m high and lockable from both sides  
4. Delivery of landscape scheme  
5. Electric Vehicle Charging Points (EVCP) provided prior to 
occupation of plot  
6. Solar panels prior to occupation of plot  
7. Natural stone specification and construction  
8. Obscure glazing to bathrooms facing Moorcroft 
9. The render units shall be treated with a biocide water-based 
masonry wash prior to their first occupation unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the LPA.  
Reason: To ensure the quality and appearance of the development 
in the future. 
The Planning Officer gave the Committee Members an update on the       
application and confirmed that appearance, layout, and scale were the 
only areas to be decided at this Committee meeting.  An additional 
condition had been proposed which required an additive to be added to 
the render to minimise render-streak. 
 
Devon County Council Highways Officer clarified that access to the site 
had already been granted and that the layout within the site was for 
consideration at this Committee.  He confirmed that Section 106 monies 
would be used to review the speed limit in the surrounding areas and, 
should this application be approved, the review would be carried out 
before construction commenced.  In keeping with current practice, the 
estate would have no pavements within but serviced by grass verges 

Page 28



instead.  This would help maintain an appearance of ruralisation in this 
sensitive location.  The issue of who would maintain the verges was not 
yet determined as the road would not necessarily be offered for 
adoption to Devon County Council. 
 
Further to questions from Members it was confirmed that the roof tiles 
would be plain concrete and that the Supplementary Planning 
Document’s reference to slate tiles was a guidance and not a 
requirement.  The Case Officer confirmed that the only Permitted 
Development to have been removed at outline was with regards to 
windows facing Moorcroft Close.   
 
Following a question to the applicant’s agent, it was confirmed that the 
applicant would be willing to review the number of properties with solar 
panels and the application, if approved, would be subject to receiving 
an amended plan showing additional PV on rooves.   
 
If approved, the responsibility for the bins around the play area would 
be determined at a later stage.  The Case Officer confirmed that the 
well would be capped and was at a distance from any building, with 
several trees around the area. 
 
Following a Member’s question to the agent, it was confirmed that the 
site was currently due to be supplied with gas central heating but the 
applicant would be willing to look at a community energy system.  
 
During discussion the percentage of affordable housing and the layout 
of the site was commended. 
 
COMMITTEE DECISION: Revised recommendation members 
voted on was: ‘Delegated to Head of Practice to conditionally 
approve subject to additional condition to secure render additive 
and subject to the receipt of an acceptable roof plan showing 
additional solar PV panels’ 
 

 
 

(b)   Application No. 1355/19/FUL     Ward: Tavistock North 
 

  Site Address: 10 Ford Street, Tavistock. 
   
Development: READVERTISEMENT (Revised plans received) 
Erection  of 6 flats, 1 cottage and associated car parking 
(Resubmission of 2147/17/FUL) 
 

 
                Speakers included: 
 
                Objector- Dr Iain Ogilvie 
                Agent – Ms Kate Price 
                Ward Member – Cllr Steve Hipsey 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Delegate to Head of Development 
Management for Conditional approval subject to completion of an 
acceptable S106 agreement 

Page 29



 
Pre-commencement conditions:  
4 – highways  
5 – CMP  
6 – WSI  
20 – flood protection  

 
Conditions:  
1.  Standard Time Limit  
2.  Accordance with plans  
3.  Drainage  
4.  Highways  
5.  CMP highways  
6.  WSI Archaeology  
7.  Unexpected contamination condition  
8.  DEV32 condition re green energy/sustainability  
9.  Electric Vehicle Charging Pints (EVCP)  
10.  Landscaping condition (hard and soft including boundaries). 

Notwithstanding the information provided full details of the 
materials, design and installation of all lintols, voussoirs and 
sills shall be agreed in writing with the LPA. These items shall 
be installed and retained as agreed.  

         Reason: In order to ensure that the development 
complements the special character of the conservation area 
and world heritage site. 

11.  South eastern and north eastern windows serving bathrooms 
to be top hung and obscure glazed prior to occupation and 
remain as such in perpetuity.  

12.  South eastern side bay windows to be obscurely glazed as 
shown in plan 2163 (PL-)11 Rev G  

13.  Submission of a plan showing the integration of bat and bird 
boxes to be installed prior to occupation and retained 
thereafter  

14.  Stonework sample panel  
15.  Full details of the materials, design and installation of all 

lintols, voussoirs and sills. 
16.  Installation full details of the oriel windows and balustrades,  
17. Materials samples  
18.  Window and door details and materials  
19.  Slate sample and fixing  
20.  Flood protection  

 
Section 106 Agreement –  

 Tamar Valley EMS contribution  
 OSSR monies: £12,137 towards improvements to and on-going 

maintenance of open space and play facilities at The Meadows, 
Tavistock  

 £9,858 towards improvements to and on-going maintenance of 
sports facilities in Tavistock 

 
The Planning Officer gave the committee members an update on the       
application’s siting in flood zone three but the reasons why this 
application mitigated building in flood zone three; ie rebuild, sustainable 
location, regeneration, prominent location in Tavistock.  There remained 

Page 30



an outstanding objection from the Environmental Agency but officers felt 
this was mitigated by lifting internal floor area as high as possible.   
 
The Highways Officer confirmed that the visibility for access was good 
and he felt that traffic volume would be lower with the new use of the 
area. 
 
The Case Officer clarified that it was revision g) that was being reviewed 
for approval, and not revision f) as shown in the presentation. 
 
It was confirmed that the cottage being built was a replacement of a 
cottage which was historically there.  The cottage at No.9 would lose 
some natural lighting, but the case officer confirmed that No.9 had 
access to other light and the two little windows on the side of No.9 would 
be subject to party wall considerations. 
 
The Heritage Officer confirmed that the new cottage would be stone and 
would fit with the extant cottage and that the reinstatement of this cottage 
was seen as a positive. 
 
During the debate, the following points were made: 
 

 Members disagreed whether there would be an increase or 
decrease in vehicular movements with the new scheme, with 
one Member stating that they would like to have seen a study by 
an acoustic engineer to evaluate vehicular noise in the area and 
whether a condition would be needed to negate the noise.  
 

 Several Members commented on the block shape of the 
building, and its massing, with concern regarding the balconies 
overlooking the road. 

 
 It was commented that six parking spaces for seven properties 

was against recommendations in the Supplementary Planning 
Document 

 
 

COMMITTEE DECISION:  conditional approval 
 
 

*DM&L.13 PLANNING PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 The Senior Officer, Development Management updated the Members on 

the Planning Performance Indicators, highlighting rising workloads. 
 
 
*DM&L.14 PLANNING APPEALS UPDATE 

The Senior Officer, Development Management updated the Members on 
the decided planning appeals.   
 

 
*DM&L.15 UNDETERMINED MAJOR APPLICATIONS REPORT 

The Senior Officer, Development Management updated the Members on 
each of the undetermined Major applications. 
 
 Page 31



 
(The Meeting terminated at 12:32pm, with a five minute break at 11:18am) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

______________________ 
Chairman 

Page 32



Minutes of a meeting of the WEST DEVON DEVELOPMENT 
MANAGEMENT & LICENSING COMMITTEE held on TUESDAY the 
12th day of OCTOBER 2021 at 10.00am at the CHAMBER, 
KILWORTHY PARK 

 
 

Present: Cllr J Yelland – Chairman 
                      Cllr T Pearce –Vice Chair 
         
 Cllr R Cheadle            Cllr T Leech 
           Cllr C Mott                          Cllr D Moyse                               
 Cllr Ratcliffe                Cllr M Renders  
           Cllr T Southcott  Cllr P Vachon  
            
            
Head of Development Management (PW) 
Senior Development Management Officer (AHS) 
Planning Officers (EA and BK) 
Highways Officer, Devon County Council (PT) 
Solicitor (BF) 
Senior Specialist – Place Making (AR) 
Senior Case Officer, Democratic Services (KH)    

 
 
*DM&L.16     APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
                     There were apologies received from Cllr S Hipsey for whom Cllr  
                      Cheadle substituted. 
                      
 
 
*DM&L.17 DECLARATION OF INTEREST 

Cllrs T Pearce and B Ratcliffe declared a personal interest in all 
applications by virtue of being Members of the Devon Building Control 
Partnership.  They remained in the meeting and took part in the debate 
and vote thereon. 
 
Cllr J Yelland declared an interest on behalf of all the Committee 
Members as they had all received correspondence from Baker Estates 
and from a Lamerton Parish Councillor in regard to application 
1766/21/OPA.  
  

 
*DM&L.18 URGENT BUSINESS 
  There was no urgent business brought forward to this Meeting. 
 
 
*DM&L.19 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES 

The Minutes of the Development Management and Licensing 
Committee Meeting held on 14h September 2021 were confirmed as a 
correct record. 

 
 
*DM&L.20 PLANNING, LISTED BUILDING, TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 

AND ENFORCEMENT REPORTS 

Page 33



                     The Committee proceeded to consider the application(s) that had been 
prepared by the Development Management Specialists and considered 
also the comments of the Town and Parish Councils together with other 
representations received, which were listed within the presented 
agenda report and summarised below, and RESOLVED that: 

      
(a) Application No: 1324/21/FUL      Ward: Okehampton North 

 
Site Address: St James Church of England Primary School, 
Fort Road, Okehampton 

                              
Development: New artificial turf pitch with fencing 
       
Speakers included:  
Objector – Glennon Chatting-Walters 
Supporter –Michaela Myerscough 
                         

                             
  RECOMMENDATION: Refusal 

 
1.  The proposal would introduce a built form of development 

that due to its scale, height and proximity will result in a 
harmful impact on the character and appearance of the area. 
The proposed development is therefore contrary to Policies 
DEV10 and DEV20 of the Plymouth and South West Devon 
Joint Local Plan. 

2.  The proposed development by reason of loss of outlook, over 
dominance and loss of privacy will result in a form of 
development that is harmful to the amenity of neighbouring 
residents. As such the proposal would fail to comply with the 
requirements of Policies DEV1 and DEV2 of the Plymouth and 
South West Devon Joint Local Plan. 

                        
During discussion and debate Members raised concerns over the                       
raised height of the pitch and the impact on the privacy of neighbouring                        
properties.    

   
 The Solicitor advised the Committee that the reference to Policy 

DEV10 in the recommendation was an error and therefore was not  
being relied as support for the recommendation. 

 
 
COMMITTEE DECISION: Refusal 
 

 
(b)   Application No. 1766/21/OPA     Ward: Milton Ford  

 
 Site Address: “Land at Sx 445 766” Lamerton 
   
Development: Outline application with some matters reserved for 
residential development of up to 20 dwellings, formation of new 
access and associated works. 
 
 Speakers included: 
 

Page 34



 Objector- Mr Brian Pedder’s statement was read out by the  
 Democratic Services Officer, as he was unable to attend in person 

         Supporter –  Richard Ayre 
         Lamerton Parish Council – Cllr Jess Evans 
         Ward Member – Cllr Neil Jory 
                 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Delegate approval to Head of Development  
Management, in conjunction with Chairman to conditionally grant 
outline planning permission, subject to a Section 106 legal 
obligation. 

 
Conditions (list not in full) 

 
1. Submission of reserved matters. 
2. Reserved matters to be submitted within 3 years. 
3. Commencement of development within 2 years following approval 

of last of the reserved matters. 
4. Access to be constructed in accordance with approved plan.  
5. Reserved matters to include replacement hedgerows and hedge 

bank at access points. 
6. Main access to be constructed prior to other works commencing. 
7. Construction Management Plan. 
8. Estate roads condition. 
9. Internal roads to be provided prior to occupation. 
10. Waste audit statement. 
11. Unexpected contamination. 
12. Electric vehicle charging points. 
13. Low carbon development in accordance with DEV32. 
14. Open market housing mix. 
15. Surface Water drainage details 
16. Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP)  
17. Construction and Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) 
18. Adhere to the tree protection plan 

 
 

Members raised the following points: 
 concerns about the safety of pedestrians using an uncontrolled 

crossing point.  
 Safety of the junction from Ducks Pool Lane onto the main road. 
 Loss of hedge along the lane 
 The development is outside of the built up area and in the open 

countryside 
 

                     
COMMITTEE DECISION:  Refusal – TTV26 part 2 and not an 
exception site - TTV27.  
 
 

    (c)  Application No. 1355/19/FUL       Ward: Tavistock North 
 
       Site Address: 10 Ford Street, Tavistock, Devon 
 
       Development: READVERTISEMENT (Revised plans received)  
       Erection of 6 flats, 1 cottage and associated car parking    Page 35



      (resubmission of 2147/17/FUL) 
 
      Speakers included: 
      
      Objector – Mrs Pauline Sawyer 
      Supporter – Kate Price  
 
      RECOMMENDATION: Remains as per the September report  
      recommendation –Delegate to the Head of DM to conditionally 
      Approve subject to satisfactory completed S106 legal agreement 
 

                   The Solicitor explained the application was brought back to Committee 
                   due to an error at the previous committee meeting. When previously  
                   asked if there were any other windows serving the two rooms which had  
                   windows on the western ground floor elevation of number 9 Ford Street,  
                   the answer was yes, however this was incorrect, there are not. The report  
                   was brought back to consider with the new material information and 
                   whether it would change the opinion of the Committee. 
 

      During debate Members raised the following points: 
 Concerns for right to light to number 9 Ford Street 
 Concerns a party wall is being created, however the Head  

of Development Management confirmed that it is a party wall 
as it was the wall between numbers 9 and 10. The fact that 
number 10 has been demolished did not stop it being a party 
wall. Any works done to the wall is subject to the Party Wall  
Act 1996. 

 The Head of Development Management explained that the 
owner of what was number 10 could without planning 
permission build a 2 metre high wall on the boundary, or park a 
vehicle, and block the windows completely. 

 
 

      Committee Decision: Refused – Detrimental impact on the amenity  
                  of  the occupiers of number 9 Ford Street, due to the loss of light to  
                  the windows serving the wet room and dining room. It is contrary to 
                  Policy Dev 1 of the Joint Local Plan. 
                   
                   
              

 
  (d)    Application No. 3581/21/VPO       Ward: Okehampton North 

 
                   Site Address: Parcels 3, 4a and 4b, land Crediton Road, 
                   Okehampton  
                 
                   Development: Application for modification of Section 106 
                   agreement on 2731/15/OPA 
 
                   Speakers included: 
 
                   Supporter: Mr David Matthews 
 
                   RECOMMENDATION: Agree variation as proposed  
          Page 36



                    Members raised the following points during debate: 
 

 Concerns on delivery of affordable housing being left  
until the end of the development and being built in  
one area.  

 Concerns of properties being sold off at a later date. 
 Under delivering on affordable housing 
 Wording to be a maximum of 80% with final figure to be 

agreed with the Head of Planning. 
 

 
                    The Solicitor suggested that the Committee might want to consider  
                     if  it was in agreement firstly with  the variation to remove the trigger 
                    prohibiting the commencement of Parcel 4a before 85% of the dwellings  
                    on parcel 4a are occupied. Secondly to ensure the level of open market 
                    properties occupied on Parcel 4a is restricted until affordable housing is  
                    provided on Parcel 4b and what trigger points members were  
                    comfortable with.  

 
 

                   Committee Decision  
Variation of the completed S106 agreement which accompanies 
approval 2731/15/OPA in order to remove the obligations which 
require 85% of the Open Market Units in Phase 3 to have been 
completed prior to the commencement of development on Phase 4a 
and insert provisions prohibiting a proportion of the market units 
on Parcel 4a being occupied until 100% of the Affordable Houses 
on parcel 4b have been transferred to the registered provider.  The 
proportion shall be negotiated and the proportion of market units 
that can be occupied on parcel 4a shall not exceed 80%. 

                     
 
   (e)            Application No. 1391/21/ARM       Ward: Okehampton North 
 
                   Site Address: Parcel 4a, West of Crediton Road, Okehampton 
                   Development: READVERTISEMENT (Revised plans received) 
                
                   Speakers included: 
 
                   Supporter: Mr David Matthews 
 

 RECOMMENDATION: Delegation to Head of Development Management 
to Grant conditional consent  subject to the  completion of the 
associated Deed of Variation (providing no new material considerations 
are raised prior to the current consultation end date of 30th September). 
 
           Conditions/Reasons for refusal (list not in full) 

1.Time limit for RM reflecting outline time limit 
2. Adherence to plans (including Landscaping plan and planting 
strategy) 
3. rear garden gates locking mechanism 
4. noise mitigation compliance 
5. removal of PD/lighting/windows re biodiversity 
6. EVCP prior to plot occupation 
7. Trigger for pedestrian access to Parcel 3 prior to first occupation Page 37



8. distribution of resident biodiversity pack on occupation 
9. adherence to ecological mitigation measures 
 

                     Members raised the following points 
 

 Visibility at the crossing point 
 Concerns over speed limits . The Highways Officer confirmed 

that the speed limit had been brought down to 40mph and 
cannot be brought down to 30mph as it did not meet the 
criteria for 30mph. 

 Concerns of possible disposal of grass cuttings from gardens 
into neighbouring field. The Planning Officer confirmed the 
area next to the field was enclosed and was in the ownership 
of the management company.  

 Percentage of houses with solar panels.    
 Electric car charging points.   
 Concerns over speed limits. The Highways Officer confirmed 

that a Traffic Regulation Order has been applied for to 
reduce the speed limit down to 40mph but cannot be brought 
down to 30mph as it did not meet the County Council criteria 
for 30mph. 
               

                  
                   COMMITTEE DECISION: Delegated to Head of Development  
                   Management to Grant Conditional Consent subject to the 
                   completion of the associated Deed of Variation. 
 

 
*DM&L.21 PLANNING APPEALS UPDATE 

The Head of Development Management updated the Members on the 
decided planning appeals.   
 

 
*DM&L.22 UNDETERMINED MAJOR APPLICATIONS REPORT 

The Head of Development Management updated the Members on each 
of the undetermined Major applications. 
 
 

 
(The Meeting terminated at 3.30pm) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

______________________ 
Chairman 

Page 38



Minutes of a meeting of the WEST DEVON DEVELOPMENT 
MANAGEMENT & LICENSING COMMITTEE held on TUESDAY the 
9th day of NOVEMBER 2021 at 10.00am in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, 
KILWORTHY PARK 

 
 

Present: Cllr J Yelland – Chairman 
                      Cllr T Pearce –Vice Chairman 
         
 Cllr S Hipsey   Cllr T Leech 
           Cllr C Mott                          Cllr D Moyse                               
 Cllr B Ratcliffe                Cllr M Renders  
           Cllr T Southcott  Cllr P Vachon  
            
            
Head of Development Management (PW) 
Planning Case Officers (BH and GL) 
Monitoring Officer (DF) 
Licensing Specialist (NS) 
Democratic Services Manager (DW)    

 
 
*DM&L.23     APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
                     There were no apologies received for this meeting. 
                      
 
*DM&L.24 DECLARATION OF INTEREST 

Cllrs T Pearce and B Ratcliffe declared a personal interest in all 
applications by virtue of being Members of the Devon Building Control 
Partnership.  They remained in the meeting and took part in the debate 
and vote thereon. 
 
Cllr S Hipsey declared a personal interest in planning application 
number 3030/21/HHO (52 Westmoor Park, Tavistock) by virtue of the 
applicant being a friend and colleague.  Cllr Hipsey confirmed that he 
was considering the planning application with an open mind and he 
remained in the meeting and took part in the debate and vote on this 
application. 

  
 
*DM&L.25 URGENT BUSINESS 
  There was no urgent business brought forward to this Meeting. 
 
 
*DM&L.26 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES 

The Minutes of the Development Management and Licensing 
Committee Meeting held on 12th October 2021 were confirmed as a 
correct record, subject to the attendance details being amended 
whereby Cllr Southcott was in attendance (and not Cllr Crozier) as was 
indicated in the published draft Minutes. 

 
 
 
 

Page 39



*DM&L.27 CORRECTION OF MINUTES – MEETING DATED 14 SEPTEMBER 
2021 (Minute DM&L.19 refers) 
It was PROPOSED and SECONDED and when put to the vote declared 
CARRIED that: 
 
‘The confirmed minutes of the meeting of 14 September 2021 be 
corrected by the deletion of the words: “However, following a complaint 
from the residents of 9 Ford Street, Tavistock, that the building of 10 
Ford Street would remove their access to natural light, the decision was 
held in abeyance for the Case Officer to visit No. 9 Ford Street to review 
the window and light solution” in Minute DM&L 12(b).’ 
 

 
*DM&L.28 PLANNING, LISTED BUILDING, TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 

AND ENFORCEMENT REPORTS 
                     The Committee proceeded to consider the application(s) that had been 

prepared by the Development Management Specialists and considered 
also the comments of the Town and Parish Councils together with other 
representations received, which were listed within the presented 
agenda report and summarised below, and RESOLVED that: 

      
(a) Application No: 3030/21/HHO      Ward: Tavistock South East 

 
Site Address: 52 Westmoor Park, Tavistock 
 
Householder application for replacement of small garage with 
new store and single storey rear extension with decking 
 
Speakers included:  
None 
                         
RECOMMENDATION: Conditional Approval 
 
Conditions: 
1 Standard time limit 
2 Adherence to plans 
3 Materials to match 
4 Surface water drainage  
5 Adherence to ecological mitigation  
6 Incidental use only 
 
During discussion, Members expressed their support for the case 
officer recommendation whereby the application be conditionally 
approved. 
 
COMMITTEE DECISION: Conditional Approval 
 
 

(b) Application No: 3087/20/FUL  Ward: Exbourne 
 
Site Address: ‘Middletown Farmhouse’, Sampford Courtenay 
 
Repair and alteration to existing farm buildings to form 
additional living accommodation 
 

Page 40



Speakers included: 
Applicant – Nicky Courage 
Parish Council representative – Marion Pratt (Clerk) 
Local Ward Member – Cllr Barry Ratcliffe 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Refusal 
 
Reasons for Refusal Recommendation: 
 
1. The alterations and extensions proposed will harm the historic 

character of the curtilage listed outbuilding and so are contrary 
to DEV21.2 of the Joint Local Plan, paragraph 200 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework and the guidance in the 
‘Barn Guide’ that forms part of the adopted Supplementary 
Planning Document.  
 

2. The design and materials of the proposed development and 
the form of the extensions proposed will harm the setting of the 
grade II listed farmhouse and the character of the conservation 
area. This is contrary to policies DEV21.1, DEV21.2 and 
DEV21.6 of the Joint Local Plan and paragraph 200 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework.  

 
3. The design and materials proposed do not reflect the character 

of the existing buildings or the local vernacular traditions and 
so are contrary to DEV20.2 and paragraph 130 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 

 
In disucssion, whilst some Members agreed with the supporting 
views that had been expressed by the supporter and the parish 
council clerk, the majority of Members echoed the reasons for 
refusal that had been expressed by the case officer. 
 
COMMITTEE DECISION: Refusal 
 
 

(c) Application No. 3088/20/LBC  Ward: Exbourne 
 
Site Address: ‘Middletown Farmhouse’, Sampford Courtenay 
 
Listed Building Consent for repair and alterations to existing 
farm buildings to form additional living accommodation. 
 
Speakers included: 
Applicant – Nicky Courage 
Parish Council representative – Marion Pratt (Clerk) 
Local Ward Member – Cllr Barry Ratcliffe 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Refusal 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



Reasons for Refusal Recommendation: 
 
1. The alterations and extensions proposed will harm the historic 

character of the curtilage listed outbuilding and so are contrary 
to DEV21.2 of the Joint Local Plan, paragraph 200 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework and the guidance in the 
‘Barn Guide’ that forms part of the adopted Supplementary 
Planning Document; and 
 

2. Inadequate information has been provided to indicate how the 
historic fabric of the building will be conserved and repaired. 
The proposal is, therefore, contrary to the aims of DEV21 and 
paragraphs 6.51 and 6.52 of the Supplementary Planning 
Document. The information supplied does not meet the needs 
of paragraph 194 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
COMMITTEE DECISION: Refusal 

 
 

*DM&L.28 PLANNING APPEALS UPDATE 
The Head of Development Management updated the Members on the 
recently determined planning appeals.  In so doing, he made particular 
reference to: 
 
- the Inspector decision relating to planning application number 

3110/20/HHO (16 Mill Hill Cottages, Tavistock) being particularly 
interesting and worthy of being absorbed by Members; 
 

- lessons to be learned by officers in relation to decision 4211/20/HHO 
(Bradford Cottages, Road from Fairfield to South Lodge Buckland 
Monachorum); 

 
- the decision relating to 0321/20/OPA (Land north of Brandize 

Cottage, Folly Gate).  During the debate, a Member expressed his 
disappointment at this appeal decision and was of the view that the 
outcome was in contradiction to the adopted Joint Local Plan.  

 
 
*DM&L.29 UNDETERMINED MAJOR APPLICATIONS REPORT 

The Head of Development Management provided the Committee with an 
update on each of the undetermined Major applications that were listed 
in the published agenda papers. 
 
 

DM&L.30 THREE-YEARLY REVIEW OF GAMBLING STATEMENT OF 
LICENSING PRINCIPLES 
The Licensing Specialist presented a report that sought a 
recommendation from the Committee to adopt the draft Gambling 
Statement of Licensing Principles (as set out at Appendix A of the 
published agenda report). 
 
It was then: 
 
 
 

Page 42



RECOMMENDED 
 
That the Development Management and Licensing Committee has 
considered the amended draft Gambling Statement of Licensing 
Principles and the responses received during the public consultation 
exercise and RECOMMENDS to Council that the amended Principles (as 
set out at Appendix A of the published agenda report) be adopted for the 
period from 31 January 2022 to 30 January 2025. 

 
(The Meeting terminated at 11.25am) 

 
______________________ 

Chairman 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Full Council 

Date: 30th November 2021 

Title: Annual Review of Health and Safety Policy 
Statement 

Portfolio Area: Wellbeing/Leader  

Wards Affected: All 

Urgent Decision: N Approval and 
clearance obtained: 

Y  

Date next steps can be taken: Immediately 
following this Meeting. 

 

  

Author: Ian Luscombe Role: Head of Environmental 
Health and Licensing 

Contact: 01822 813713 Ian.Luscombe@swdevon.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION:   

That Council be RECOMMENDED to adopt the annual joint health 
and safety at work policy and that it is signed by the Head of 
Paid Service and the Leader of the Council. 

1. Executive summary  
1.1 The Council is required to prepare a written health and safety policy 

statement by the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974. The policy 
should be agreed and signed off by the Head of Paid Service and 
the Leader of the Council.  

 
1.2  The Joint South Hams District Council and West Devon Borough 

Council Health and Safety policy documents the Council’s position 
regarding its intentions, organisation and arrangements for 
ensuring the health, safety and welfare at work of their employees, 
and the health and safety of any other person working in, visiting 
the Councils, or who may be affected by their activities 

 
1.3 The policy is required to be reviewed annually and where 

appropriate, revised to reflect any significant change within the 
Organisation.  
 

1.4  There are no changes to the Policy this year. 

Page 45

Agenda Item 11



 
2. Background  
2.1 The Council is required to have a written health and safety policy 

under the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974. The Policy is an 
important document to set the responsibility for the health and 
safety of staff in the Council’s employment and those persons 
effected by its activities. The Policy covers the entire range of 
Council Services. 
 

2.2 The Policy is supplemented by a number of Safety Codes dealing 
with specific issues relevant to particular Service Groups and/or 
activities, e.g., Work at Height, Working Alone, Incident Reporting, 
etc. These Codes will have the same status as the Policy 
 

2.3 The Policy adopts a sensible approach to managing risk which 
reflects best practice and is based on integrated management 
principles enabling the Council to achieve a correct balance in 
managing health and safety as part of an overall risk management 
 

2.4 The Policy should be reviewed annually and revised to include any 
significant changes 
 

2.5 The past year has been a challenging one due to the impacts on the 
Council of the covid pandemic. From a health and safety 
perspective the safety of staff and members has been foremost in 
our minds. Protocols have been introduced, adapted and kept under 
review to follow the changing Government guidance to ensure staff 
and members are operating in a safe working environment. 

 
2.6 There has also been a strong focus on health and wellbeing. 

Managers have been encouraged to continue to support their teams 
and the Human Resources team have promoted mental health 
initiatives. 

 
 

 
 

3. Outcomes/outputs  
3.1 The Council is required to have a Health and Safety Policy agreed 

by senior management and members, signed off by the Head of 
Paid Service and the Leader of the Council 

 
 
4. Options available and consideration of risk  
4.1 There is a statutory requirement to agree and implement the 

Councils Health and Safety Policy. Failure to do so would risk 
prosecution by the Health and Safety Executive and put employee’s 
health and safety at unacceptable risk. 

 
 
 
 

Page 46



5.  Proposed Way Forward  
5.1 The Council should agree the revised Health and Safety Policy and 

continue to review it on an annual basis and/or when significant 
changes occur. 

 
5.2 The Risk Management Officer group should provide a basis for 

integrating health and safety into its management structure and 
achieve continuous improvement in health and safety standards.  

 
6. Implications  
 
Implications 
 

Relevant  
to  
proposals  
Y/N  

Details and proposed measures to address  

Legal/Governance 
 

Y Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974 
The Policy conforms to the 2013 HSE 
guidance in order to ensure that the Council 
is legally compliant. Accordingly, the Policy 
needs to be formally adopted by the 
Council. 
 

Financial 
 

Y Achieving legal compliance requires the 
Council’s officers to actively engage in 
carrying out health and safety 
responsibilities intrinsic to their job role. 
The cost will be officer time which is 
accounted for within existing budgets. 
 
Achieving best practice will require an ongoing 
commitment to continuously improve 
the health and safety management system 
which will add to the cost of 
officer time. 

Risk  The potential cost of not achieving legal 
compliance includes: 
i HSE enforcement costs 
ii legal and court cost 
iii compensation costs 
iv loss of credibility. 

Comprehensive Impact Assessment Implications 
 
Equality and 
Diversity 
 

 The Policy applies to all members of staff 
and has considerations of the effect of 
Council activities on non-employees. 
Effective management of health and safety 
should ensure that equality and human 
rights are not infringed. 

Safeguarding 
 

 Indirect impact derived from suitable and 
sufficient risk assessment of activities 
associated with vulnerable groups 

Page 47



Community 
Safety, Crime 
and Disorder 
 

 No direct impact 
 
 

Health, Safety 
and Wellbeing 

 As above, indirect impact on wellbeing 
derived from suitable and sufficient 
assessment of risk of work activities, e.g., 
lone working 

Other 
implications 

 None 
 

 
 
 
Supporting Information 
 
Appendices: 
South Hams District and West Devon Borough Council’s Health and Safety 
Statement  
 
Background Papers: 
None 

Page 48



 

Version 7 – November 2021   1  

South Hams District and West Devon  
Borough Councils  

  

HEALTH AND SAFETY STATEMENT AND POLICY  

  
  

 
  

Revisions  
  

Version 1  September 2015  

Version 2  November 2016  

Version 3  July 2017  

Version 4  October 2018 

Version 5  November 2019 

 Version 6 November 2020  

Version 7 November 2021 

  
  

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 49



 

Version 7 – November 2021   2  

Health and Safety Statement 
 

 

South Hams District Council and West Devon Borough Council are fully 
committed to ensuring a high standard of health and safety. The Councils recognise 
their statutory duties protect the health, safety and welfare of staff and others 
connected to our work activities. We recognise the potential strategic, operational 
and financial risks associated with failures in health and safety and the importance 
of maintaining a well-resourced internal health and safety service.  

During the last year we have all seen the importance of keeping the workforce 
safe whilst working in difficult and uncertain conditions. The Health and Safety of 
our staff has been a priority while tackling the COVID-19 pandemic. 

To demonstrate our commitment to health and safety we annually update the 
health and safety policy statement and have developed a health and safety 
improvement programme to continue the cycle of continuous improvement by 
reviewing and updating the health and safety procedures related to the work that 
we do. This statement, and the associated management systems detail how South 
Hams District Council and West Devon Borough Council will manage our health 
and safety responsibilities and deal with any incidents that may occur.  

It will be the responsibility of the Councils’ Senior Leadership team (SLT) to 
monitor the implementation of this policy and the councils’ overall risk management 
performance. This will be achieved through the use of regular reporting 
commissioned by SLT and annual audits. 

The Risk Management Group will be responsible for ensuring the work 
programme is delivered. They will champion health and safety compliance within 
the Community of Practice business areas.  

The organisations have identified that technical expertise for health and safety 
will be provided by the Environmental Health team. They provide advice and 
support to the organisation as necessary.  

We expect all staff to take reasonable steps to be aware of the policy, risk 
assessments, and the controls identified. To support the Heads of Practice in 
assessing risks, implementing controls, and to actively engage in any training, 
exercises or workshops will arranged to test the organisation’s effectiveness.  

Members are required to make themselves aware of the health and safety 
arrangements that are likely to effect them. 

The Councils are committed to ensuring that the internal health and safety 
service is adequately resourced to enable the full implementation of this policy. This 
commitment includes the provision of sufficient financial resources, management 
and employee time, training and advisory support. The Council has appointed a 
competent person to provide competent health and safety advice to the Councils. 

This Health and Safety arrangements will be reviewed at least annually or more 
frequently where there have been significant changes to the Councils or factors 
affecting the Councils’ activities.   

 

Page 50



 

Version 7 – November 2021   3  

 

Signed:________________________________ Date:  ________________  
 

        Andy Bates, Chief Executive 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



 

Version 7 – November 2021   4  

 
  
1.  Statement of Intent   
  
1.1  This is a statement of policy by South Hams District Council and West Devon 

Borough Council (the Councils) about their intentions, organisation and 
arrangements for ensuring the health, safety and welfare at work of their 
employees, and the health and safety of any other person working in, visiting 
the Councils, or who may be affected by their activities.   

  
1.2  It is the intention of the Councils to do all that is reasonably practicable to 

provide safe and healthy working conditions for its employees and to enlist 
their support in achieving this. The Councils also recognise their 
responsibilities to ensure the health and safety of elected members, members 
of the public, visitors and contractors when on their premises and others who 
may be affected by their activities.   

  
2.  Policy  
  
2.1  It is the policy of the Councils as employers that they will comply so far as is 

reasonably practicable, with the requirements of the Health and Safety at 
Work etc. Act 1974 and all other relevant statutory provisions.   

  
2.2  This policy is supported by Codes of Practice that apply throughout the 

Councils and will have the same status as this policy.  The Codes of Practice 
will reflect:   

  
• minimum legal requirements   
• best practice.  

  
2.3 The Councils will do all that is reasonably practicable to prevent personal injury 

and illness, loss and damage to premises, plant and equipment by:   

• Appropriate assessment and management of risk for all activities and 
seeking to eliminate hazards and/or reduce risks;   

• ensuring appropriate competence of all employees in health and safety by 
the provision of information, instruction, training, supervision, management 
support and performance appraisal;   

• ensuring close co-operation and participation of management and staff 
through normal working relationships and consultation with employees.   

  
2.4 The Councils will pursue the above aims by the implementation of the 

objectives at Appendix A and the new three year safety plan.   
  

2.5 The remainder of this document contains the following sections:   

• Organisation and responsibilities   

• Arrangements for implementation   

• Objectives.  

Page 52



 

Version 7 – November 2021   5  

  
3.  Policy Review   
  
3.1  This policy will be reviewed annually, in consultation with the unions, by the  

Internal Health and Safety Service who will advise the Senior Leadership 
Team (SLT) on possible amendments  

  
3.2  The Codes of Practice will be reviewed by the Internal Health and Safety 

Service as and when legislation changes, best practice dictates or when 
otherwise necessary.   

  
4.  Organisation and responsibilities   
  
4.1  This part of the policy describes the organisational arrangements within the 

Councils for ensuring health and safety at work. Health and Safety issues are 
line management responsibilities alongside and of equal importance to 
responsibilities for the provision of services and the management of resources.   

  
4.2  Head of Paid Service   
  
4.2.1 The Head of Paid Service has overall responsibility to ensure, so far as is 

reasonably practicable, the health, safety and welfare at work of all the 
Councils’ employees and members, to ensure, so far as is reasonably 
practicable, the health and safety of others who work in and visit the Councils 
or may be affected by the Councils’ activities.   
  

4.2.2  The Head of Paid Service will include Health and Safety in his/her annual 
report to Council.  

  
4.3  Directors  
  
4.3.1  Directors are responsible for the implementation of this policy in the areas over 

which they have control.  Oversight of the function sits with the Director for 
Governance and Assurance. 

  
4.3.2  Head of Environmental Health and Licensing   

  
The Head of Environmental Health and Licensing will be responsible for 
providing an internal health and safety service to the Councils which will be 
the competent assistance as required by the Management of Health and 
Safety at Work Regulations 1999.   To avoid confusion this should be a 
named officer.  

  
4.4 Heads of Practice and Business Manager Case Management   
  

Heads of Practice and the Business Manager for Case Management are 
responsible for ensuring the implementation, coordination and monitoring of 
this policy and associated Codes of Practice, and the overall health and safety 
management of the staff within their control. In particular, they must:   

Page 53



 

Version 7 – November 2021   6  

• carry out risk assessments and ensure that safe working conditions are 
maintained;   

• ensure that staff within their control are trained and instructed in safe 
methods and comply with them;   

• ensure that all accidents, incidents and near misses are reported and 
investigated and steps taken wherever possible to prevent a recurrence.   

  
4.5  Heads of Practice may nominate officers with Day to Day Responsibility for 

Health and Safety in their respective services/departments and inform their 
staff and the Internal Health and Safety Service accordingly but this will not 
remove the Head of Practice’s responsibilities.  

  
4.6  Employees   
  

Employees shall:   
  

• take reasonable care for the health and safety of themselves and of other 
persons who may be affected by their acts or omissions;   

• co-operate with their manager in the implementation of this policy;   

• follow safe working practices at all times;   

• report accidents, incidents and near misses to their line manager;   

• report unsafe working conditions and hazards to their line manager or 
other appropriate person.   

  
4.7  Key staff with additional health and safety responsibilities   
  

In addition to their responsibilities as managers the following Heads of 
Services will also have the responsibilities shown at Appendix B:  

• Head of Environmental Health and Licensing   

• Head of Maritime 

• Head of Human Resources   

• Members of the Internal Health & Safety group  

4.8 Members of the Internal Health & Safety group  

• Membership of the Internal Health and Safety Group will consist of Heads of 
Practice and Managers and other relevant persons   

• The group will be a forum for discussion for Internal Health and Safety matters 
and responsible for developing and progressing health and safety awareness 
throughout the Councils.  

• The group will identify and implement work programmes relating to internal 
health and safety, including a programme of auditing and review, and any 
other tasks arising to achieve compliance with regulatory requirements or best 
practice.  

• A member of SLT will be in attendance. This will enable key decisions to be 
made or effectively escalated to SLT.   

Page 54



 

Version 7 – November 2021   7  

• This group will also be a point of contact for Union Representatives and Staff 
Forums.  

  
4.9  Head of Environmental Health and Licensing (Internal Health and 
Safety)  

  
The Head of Environmental Health and Licensing is responsible for the 
Internal Health and Safety service. The Internal Health and Safety service  
provides the competent advice to the Councils on matters relating to health, 
safety and welfare at work across the Councils. Their objectives include:  

  
• providing specialist support and guidance to the Councils on the effective 

management of health and safety;  

• to help promote and maintain a high standard of total health (physical and 
mental) for all persons working in the Councils;   

• the safeguarding of all staff from health and safety hazards arising from 
their work or the environment by means of accident prevention, 
environmental control and prevention of injury and illness;   

• to receive all Incident/Near Miss reports, maintain an Incident/Near Miss 
database and publish performance statistics.  

  
5.  Arrangements for implementation   
  
5.1  This part of the policy describes the general arrangements for the 

implementation and monitoring of health and safety at work.   
  
5.2  Strategic aims, objectives and three-year action plan   
  

The aims, objectives and three-year safety plan set out the Councils’ 
commitment to provide a healthy and safe environment for all those who work 
in and visit the Councils. The plan reflects best practice and is based on the 
principles of loss control and quality management.  

  
This approach is designed to:   

a. address the health and safety implications of the various activities of the 
organisations;   

b. identify the hazards and assess the level of risk;   

c. apply the following general principles of prevention in the order shown:  

• avoiding risks;  

• evaluating the risks which cannot be avoided;  

• combating the risks at source;  

• adapting the work to the individual, especially as regards the design of 
workplaces, the choice of work equipment and the choice of working 
and production methods, with a view, in particular, to alleviating 
monotonous work and work at a predetermined work-rate and to 
reducing their effect on health;  

Page 55



 

Version 7 – November 2021   8  

• adapting to technical progress;  

• replacing the dangerous by the non-dangerous or the less dangerous;  

• developing a coherent overall prevention policy which covers 
technology, organisation of work, working conditions, social 
relationships and the influence of factors relating to the working 
environment;  

• giving collective protective measures priority over individual protective 
measures; and  

• giving appropriate training and instructions to employees.  
  
5.3  Codes of Practice  

  
5.3.1 Where a need is identified, through legislation, risk assessments, best practice, 

health and safety auditing, the proceedings of committees or other means, a 
Code of Practice will be established to set the standard of implementation and 
operation for the identified topic. These Codes of Practice will be reviewed as 
and when legislation changes or practice dictates.   
  

5.3.2 The Codes of Practice shall have the same status as the main policy document 
and will outline how to implement the requirements of the main policy in 
specific risk areas.  

  
5.4  Training  
  
5.4.1 The Internal Health and Safety Service in conjunction with the training 

partnership and workplace managers and supervisors, will provide guidance 
on Health and Safety Training and general training needs, and identifying 
those key workers who should attend. The Internal Health and Safety CoP will 
administer health and safety training across the organisations and develop a 
training competency matrix, which will establish key training for all staff.  

  
5.4.2 Each Service will ensure that good working arrangements for health and safety 

training exist. This training will include attendance at corporate induction 
training and appropriate special to job induction training.   

  
5.4.3 Each Service will ensure that health and safety is included as an integral part of 

their annual business plan.  
  
5.4.4 Records of safety training provided will be maintained on Team Spirit and may 

also be maintained by service managers.  
  
5.4.5 The identification of health and safety training needs is to be part of the annual 

appraisal process.  Managers are responsible for identifying the training needs 
of individuals.  The Internal Health and Safety Service needs in conjunction 
with Human Resources will be responsible for an analysis of the corporate 
training.  

  

Page 56



 

Version 7 – November 2021   9  

5.5  Risk assessment  
  
5.5.1 Each manager/supervisor shall make a suitable and sufficient assessment of:   
  

• the risks to the health and safety of his employees to which they are 
exposed whilst they are at work; and   

• the risks to the health and safety of others who may be affected by their 
activities,   

for the purpose of identifying the measures necessary to ensure a safe and 
healthy place of work.  

  
5.5.2 In addition to the general risk assessment set out at paragraph 5.5.1 there may 

also be a need for a specific risk assessment and the need for that should be 
identified and if possible carried out at the same time.  These specific 
assessments are shown in the appropriate Code of Practice on Assessment of 
Risk but include:  

  
• manual handling ((including the lifting, putting down, pushing, pulling, carrying 

or moving of a load);   

• display screen equipment (computing and word processing);   

• hazardous substances etc;  

• young people  

• pregnancies.   
  
5.5.3 Risk assessments will be reviewed:  

  
• Periodically as recorded on the risk assessment;  

• when an accident, incident or near miss occurs;  

• when purchasing new equipment;  

• changing work practices etc; or moving into a new work area.   

  
5.5.4 Managers/supervisors are to monitor work activities to ensure that risk 

assessments and control measures are still suitable and sufficient and take 
appropriate action to review when necessary.  

  
5.5.5 Where a need for a generic risk assessment is identified (e.g. work in offices, 

activities of a similar nature taking place in more than one service) the internal 
health and safety service will be responsible for carrying out the assessment 
and monitoring as required by paragraph 5.5.4   

  
5.6  Health and safety standards, audit and inspection  
  
5.6.1 A set of health and safety standards has been designed and each Service will 

make their own arrangements for reviewing their level of achievement annually 
which will be reported in their service plan.  The standards are shown at 
Appendix C.  

Page 57



 

Version 7 – November 2021   10  

  
5.6.2 The Internal Health and Safety Service CoP will develop a programme of audits 

and a standardised form to identify whether the management of risk has been 
carried out in each service area. The programme should be designed to reflect 
the needs of the Councils and the individual Service and will take into account 
the particular kinds of hazard or health and safety issues encountered.   The 
timing of health and safety audits will appear in the annual safety plan and will 
be proportionate to the level and scope of the hazards and risks present.   

  
5.6.3 The combination of the review of safety standards and the audit process is 

designed to ensure that we can demonstrate our level of health and safety 
management.  The results will be analysed, considered, prioritised and shaped 
into an action programme.  

  
5.7  Occupational health   
  
5.7.1 Occupational health is concerned with work-related problems and health and 

safety in the work place. An occupational health service for staff is provided 
under arrangements made by Human Resources.  Further details may be 
obtained from the Human Resources Office.   

  
5.8  Incidents  
  
5.8.1 Any incident or injury occurring whilst at work or on the Council’s premises, 

however trivial it may appear at the time, must be reported to the Internal 
Health and Safety Service on the prescribed form.  

  
5.8.2 Any report of an incident caused by defective fixtures and fittings, furniture, 

equipment etc. should make the cause clear so that steps can be taken to 
rectify the fault and avoid a recurrence.   

  
5.9  First Aid Arrangements and Medical facilities  
  
5.9.1 Details of first aid arrangements and medical facilities for the Councils are given 

in the appropriate Code of Practice and on the Health and Safety pages of the 
Intranet.  

  
5.10 Eye tests for display screen equipment users  
  
5.10.1 Members of staff or elected members who are users of display screen 

equipment (computers etc) are eligible for the refund of the cost of an eye test.  
If it is confirmed by the optician that they require spectacles specifically for 
display screen equipment use, a further refund may be provided for the cost of 
a basic pair of spectacles. Further details are available from the Internal 
Health and Safety Service and on the Health and Safety pages of the Intranet.   

  
5.11 Smoking and vaping  
  

Page 58



 

Version 7 – November 2021   11  

5.11.1 Smoking or vaping is not permitted in any of the Council’s premises. The text 
of the policy is set out in the appropriate Code of Practice and on the Health 
and Safety pages of the Intranet.  This also extends to the use of E Cigarettes.  

  
5.12 Emergency Procedures  
  
5.12.1 Fire  
  

Details of the procedure in the case of fire are provided at each of the  
Councils’ premises.  Fire Safety training is also covered on the Induction 
Courses which is mandatory for all staff, in the health and safety training 
prospectus and periodically as a refresher.  

  
5.12.2 Emergency procedures for staff with disabilities  
  

On joining the Councils, any member of staff or elected member who has a 
disability that might impede their evacuation or the evacuation of anyone else 
should bring this to the attention of their manager. A personal evacuation plan 
will be drawn up by the responsible manager, in conjunction with the Internal 
Health & Safety Service, and this should be brought to the attention of 
colleagues working in the same locality.  Staff who develop a disability during 
their employment in the Councils should also consult their manager.  

  
5.12.3 Threats Against the Councils  
  

On receipt of a threat against the Councils including those by letter or suspect 
package suspicious letter or parcel, staff should:  

  
• make no attempt to open it;   

• place the package carefully on the nearest firm surface; and   

• telephone Follaton House Building Management (extension 1227) and 
Kilworthy Park Facilities (extension 3611/3609)  
 

  A more detailed risk assessment is available to staff working in the post room.  
  
5.13 Security   
  

Responsibility for security within the Councils’ premises rests with the 
manager of each site.  Staff are however expected to exercise all reasonable 
vigilance and, in particular, are responsible for any visitors they may bring into 
the Councils’ premises.   

  
5.14 Arrangements for Names badges and access cards and for Access Control  
  

Where there is a need to provide staff and elected members with name 
badges and access cards or for access control the Facilities service will make 
the necessary arrangements.  

  

Page 59



 

Version 7 – November 2021   12  

5.15 Consultation With Employees  
  
5.15.1 Consultation with employees on health and safety matters is essential and a 

statutory requirement.     
  
5.15.2 Suitable arrangements are to be put in place for staff consultation and Terms 

of Reference agreed as appropriate.  
  
  
  
  
………………………………………….  
Andy Bates 
Chief Executive 
  
………………………………………….    …………………………………………. 
Judy Pearce         Neil Jory  
Leader of the Council    
  

    Leader of the Council  

South Hams District Council      West Devon Borough Council  
Follaton House          Kilworthy Park  
Totnes            Tavistock  
TQ9 5NE            PL19 0BZ  
  
Date   November 2021 
  
  
Appendices  
  
Appendix A Aims and Objectives  
Appendix B Key Staff With Additional Health and Safety Responsibilities  
Appendix C Standards Linked To Health and Safety Objectives  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 60



 

Version 7 – November 2021   13  

Appendix A 
Aims and Objectives  
  
Aims  
  
• To ensure that a robust safety management system is in place;  
• To provide and maintain a work environment that is safe and without risk to 

health for all employees, contractors and others who may be affected by the 
activities of the council;  

• To avoid all accidents and to ensure that no one suffers ill health as a result of 
working at South Hams District Council or West Devon Borough Council or by 
the activities of the Councils;  

• To plan and manage activities so that hazards are assessed and risks 
eliminated or controlled in so far as is reasonably practicable by appropriate 
prevention and protection measures  

  
Objectives  
  
• Fully integrate health and safety into the management and decision-making 

processes within the Councils.  
• Ensure appropriate systems are developed and maintained for the effective 

communication of health, safety and welfare matters throughout the Councils.  
• Comply with all relevant Statutes, Regulations and Codes of Practice. The 

minimum standards that will be adopted by the Councils will be those required 
by law, although the Councils will always seek to exceed these where there is a 
demonstrable benefit.  

• Devote appropriate resources in the form of finance, equipment, personnel and 
time to ensure the maintenance of health, safety and welfare standards.  

• Provide necessary information, instruction and training to employees and 
others, including temporary staff, to ensure their competence with respect to 
health, safety and welfare.  

• Ensure appropriate liaison with all necessary persons to ensure an appropriate 
standard of health, safety and welfare. The Councils will also ensure that 
adequate arrangements are also in place for ensuring the health and safety of 
non- employees who may be affected by the Councils’ activities.  

• Ensure that all employees are aware of their responsibilities to take reasonable 
care of themselves and others who could be affected by their acts or omissions 
and to co-operate with management in achieving the standards required.   

• Ensure that managers are aware of their specific duties and responsibilities to 
comply with the letter and spirit of the Councils’ policy and that the 
management of health, safety and welfare is an integral part of their function 
and their performance will be monitored along with their other duties.  

• Carry out appropriate investigation of accidents, incidents and ‘near-misses’ 
and necessary action taken to reduce the likelihood of a recurrence.  

• Establish procedures to ensure that safe equipment and plant are provided for 
employees and non-employees.  

• Establish procedures for the appointing and monitoring of the competency of 
contractors.  

 
 

Page 61



 

Version 7 – November 2021   14  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 62



 

Version 7 – November 2021   15  

Appendix B  
  
Key Staff with Additional Health and Safety Responsibilities  
  
1. Head of Environmental Health and Licensing, in addition to his enforcement 

responsibilities in the commercial sector, will:  
 

a. Continue to be appointed as the Councils statutory appointed 
competent person under the health and safety at work act 1974  
 

b. Provide a health and safety advisory service to the Councils by means of 
the Internal Health and Safety Service;  

c. Advise the Internal Health and Safety Service on matters of Environmental 
Health and Licensing, relating to activities carried out by the  
Councils;  

d. When necessary, monitor the atmosphere and assess noise levels in 
certain areas of work;  

  
2. Head of Maritime will ensure that:  

  
a. The Dartmouth Lower Ferry operates in accordance with the South Hams 

District Council’s approved Domestic Safety Management Code as 
required by the Merchant Shipping (Domestic Passenger Ships) (Safety 
Management Code) Regulations 2001) and that reviews of the Code take 
place when necessary and at not less than 3 yearly intervals.  
  

b. The Salcombe Harbour Safety Management System as required by the 
Department for Transport Port Marine Safety Code is produced and 
reviewed at the prescribed intervals.   

  
3. Head of Human Resources will have responsibility for:   
  

a. Advising elected Members and Officers on the personnel implications of 
the Councils’ Health and Safety Policy;  

b. Consultations and negotiations with representatives of the staff on those 
aspects of the Health and Safety policy which affect the staff and their 
conditions of employment;  

c. In conjunction with the Internal Health and Safety Service provide suitable 
induction and other training for staff in health and safety matters, including 
the administration of the training programme and the organisation of 
training courses within the Council;  

d. Ensure that an appropriate paragraph concerning risk management and 
health and safety is included in each job description.  

  
4. Internal Health & Safety group will have responsibility for:  

  
a. identifying and implement work programmes relating to internal health 

and safety, including a programme of auditing and review, and any 

Page 63



 

Version 7 – November 2021   16  

other tasks arising to achieve compliance with regulatory requirements 
or best practice.  

b. the administration of health and safety training across the organisations 
and develop a training competency matrix. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 64



 

Version 7 – November 2021   17  

 
 

APPENDIX C  
Standards linked to Health and Safety Objectives  
  

Performance levels  
1  2  3  4  
Communication and Consultation - Management will ensure that appropriate systems are 
developed and maintained for the effective communication of health, safety and welfare matters 
throughout the Councils. The Councils will liaise and work with all necessary persons to ensure 
an appropriate standard of health, safety and welfare. The Council will also ensure that adequate 
arrangements are also in place for ensuring the health and safety of non- employees  
Health & safety 
is not discussed 
and changes are 
made without 
consulting with 
staff or 
managers  
.  

Health & Safety is a 
standard item on 
managers meetings, 
for all staff during 
first week induction 
and following any 
incident.  
Changes which may 
affect H&S are 
openly discussed with 
managers  

Health & Safety is a 
standard item on 
managers and team 
meetings, for all staff 
during first week 
induction and 
following any 
incident and as part of 
risk assessment.  
Changes which may 
affect H&S are 
openly discussed with 
managers and staff  

Health & Safety is a standard 
item on managers and team 
meetings for all staff during 
first week induction and 
following any incident and as 
part of risk assessment. Any 
matters arising are followed up 
to a conclusion  
Changes which may affect 
H&S are openly discussed with 
managers and staff and 
comments or arguments 
welcomed  

Contractors - The Councils will ensure that procedures are established for appointing and 
monitoring the competency of contractors.  
Contractors are 
selected 
without 
considering any 
health and 
safety 
implications  

Contractors are 
selected after 
checking their health 
and safety 
management and 
systems  

Contractors are 
selected after 
checking their health 
and safety 
management and 
systems and agreeing 
method statements 
and working 
processes. The 
Council’s  
Internal Health 
and Safety Service 
is involved.  
  

Contractors are not used  
  
OR  
  
Contractors are selected after 
checking their health and safety 
management and systems and 
agreeing method statements 
and working processes. The 
Council’s Internal Health and 
Safety Service is involved. 
Contractors are actively 
monitored during the contract 
works and a record is 
maintained.   

Monitoring of health and safety including risk assessments and working practices  
No monitoring 
of health and 
safety takes 
place  

When problems are 
brought to the 
attention of managers 
the matter is looked 
into  

Regular checks of 
some aspects of  
health and safety are  
made  

A programme of checks on 
health and safety is produced 
and followed  

Planning including the effects of service changes and requirements on health and safety  

Page 65



 

Version 7 – November 2021   18  

There is no 
consideration of 
health and 
safety in my 
planning  

Health and safety is 
included in my 
Service Plan but not 
to any great extent  

Health and safety is 
included in my 
Service Plan and 
general planning for 
my service.  Key 
hazards are identified 
together with targets 
for removing or  
mitigating the risks  

Health and safety is a feature of 
all planning in the service.  My 
service plan identifies key 
hazards and shows targets for 
removing or mitigating the 
risks.  Progress is actively 
monitored.  

Risk assessment - The Councils’ approach to health, safety and welfare is based on the 
identification, management and control of risks.   There are distinct benefits to be gained from 
providing a safe and healthy working environment, and appropriate levels of resources will be 
allocated to promoting, developing and maintaining the standards of health, safety and welfare 
within the Councils.  
No risk 
assessments 
have been 
carried out  

Risk assessments 
have been carried out 
for all activities  

Risk assessments 
have been carried out 
for all activities, 
control measures put 
in place and 
communicated to 
those affected.  
Review of 
assessments is carried 
out  

Risk assessments have been 
carried out for all activities, 
control measures put in place 
and have been communicated 
to those affected and training 
has been provided.   
Monitoring and reviewing of 
assessments is carried out and 
recorded.  

Training - The Councils will provide the necessary information, instruction and training to 
employees and others, including temporary staff, to ensure their competence with respect to 
health, safety and welfare.  
Training is not 
provided.  

Health and safety 
training needs are 
identified during the 
annual appraisal 
process but not 
monitored  

Health and safety 
training needs are 
identified during the 
annual appraisal 
process, and when 
they arise during the 
year  

Health and safety training 
needs are identified during the 
annual appraisal process, and 
when they arise during the year 
and monitoring carried out to 
ensure that training takes place  

  
South Hams District Council and West Devon Borough Council aim to ensure 
equality of opportunity in the delivery of their policies, services and  
employment practices.  South Hams District Council and West Devon Borough 
Council will challenge discrimination, and encourages other organisations 
within South Hams and West Devon to act in accordance with Equality 
legislation.    

This Policy is available in large print or Braille upon 
request.  
  
If you require any help completing associated paperwork please contact the 
Internal Health and Safety Service extension 1475.  

Page 66


	Agenda
	2 Confirmation of Minutes
	9 To receive the Minutes of the following Committees, to note the delegated decisions and to consider the adoption of those Recommendations which require approval:
	Audit Minutes 02-11-21
	Hub Minutes 2 November 2021
	DM&L Minutes 14 September 2021
	DM&L Minutes 12 October 2021
	DM&L minutes 9 November 2021

	11 Annual Review of the Health and Safety Policy Statement
	Health and Safety Policy- Appendix A


